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NOTICE
NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty Seventh Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of Vivid Global Industries 
Limited will be held on Monday, the 30th September, 2024 at 11.00 a.m. through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio 
Visual Means (OAVM) to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. 	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet of the Company as at 31st March, 2024 and Profit and 
Loss Account for the Year ended on that date together with the Reports of Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon.

2. 	 To appoint Director in place of Shri. Sumish S. Mody (DIN: 00318652) who retires by rotation and being eligible 
offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. 	 To increase the overall managerial remuneration and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass the 
following resolution as a Special Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended by 
the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, read with Section I of Part II of Schedule V and other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force) and pursuant to the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, approval of the members of the Company be and is here by accorded to pay overall managerial 
remuneration in respect of any financial year in excess of 11% of the net profits of the Company computed in the 
manner laid down in Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to take such steps 
and to do all other acts, deeds and things as may be necessary or desirable to give effect to this resolution.”

4. 	 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections196, 197, 203 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies(Appointment and Qualification of Directors)Rules, 2014 (including 
any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof) read with Schedule V thereof, the articles of association of the 
Company and upon the recommendations of Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors, 
the consent of Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the re-appointment of Shri. Miten Sudhir 
Mody (DIN 02422219) as a Wholetime Director of the Company for the period of 5 (five) years with effect from 
August 12, 2024 on the terms and conditions as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed to this Notice 
convening this meeting.
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	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT notwithstanding anything contained hereinabove, where, during the term of 
employment of the Whole-Time Director, if in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are 
inadequate, unless otherwise approved by any Statutory Authority, as may be required, the remuneration payable 
to the Executive Director including salary, perquisites and any other allowances shall be governed and be subject to 
the conditions and ceiling provided under the provisions of Schedule V of Companies Act, 2013 or such other limits 
as may be prescribed by the Government from time to time as minimum remuneration.

5.	 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of Companies 
Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (‘Rules’), including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof read with Schedule IV of the Act and applicable regulations, if 
any of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended, (“LODR”), and 
based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and subject to the approval of the 
shareholders of the Company, had reappointed Shri. Nainesh Desai (DIN 08452630) as Non-Executive Independent 
Director of the Company for a second term of five years i.e. from 20th May 2024 to 19th May 2029 and that he shall 
not be liable to retire by rotation.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and 
take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

REGISTERED OFFICE					     For and on behalf of the Board
D-21/1 M.I.D.C., Tarapur, Via Boisar, 
Dist.Palghar – 401506, Maharashtra			    	       Sd/-
							                SUMISH S. MODY
							          MANAGING DIRECTOR
Dated: 08.08.2024					               DIN: 00318652
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NOTES:

1.	 In view of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and pursuant to General Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, 
General Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, General 
Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, General Circular No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021 and all 
other relevant circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’), the 
Company is convening the 37th AGM through Video Conferencing (‘VC’) or Other Audio-Visual Means (‘OAVM’), 
without the physical presence of the Members.

	 The Company has appointed National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) to provide electronic voting facility and 
video conferencing facility for the AGM.

	 Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under 
Section 103 of the Act.

2.	 Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the facility to 
appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, the Body Corporates 
are entitled to appoint authorized representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate thereat and 
cast their votes through e-voting.

3.	 The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the 
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at 
the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not 
include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without 
restriction on account of first come first served basis.

4.	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to 
its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into 
an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, 
as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system as well as venue 
voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

5.	 The statement of material facts pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the businesses 
under item no. 3 & 4 of the Notice to be transacted at the AGM is annexed hereto.

6.	 The Register of Members and Transfer Books of the company will remain closed from 24.09.2024 to 30.09.2024 
(Both days inclusive).

7.	 Members desiring to seek any further information or clarification on the Annual Accounts or operations of the 
Company at the meeting are requested to send their queries so as to reach the Registered Office at least 10 days 
in advance of the date of meeting to enable the management to keep the information ready.

8.	 Members are requested to notify immediately any change in their address to the Company’s Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agents M/s. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd., C 101, 247 Park, L B S Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai - 400083.

9.      (a) 	 Members desirous of receiving Notices and/or documents from the Company through the electronic mode are 
urged to update their email addresses with their Depository Participants, where shares are held in electronic 
form and to the Share department of the Company/Share Transfer Agents where shares are held in physical 
form.
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(b) 	 Email Addresses of Members are advised to the Share Department of the Company/Share Transfer Agents 
where shares are held in physical mode or registered with Depositories where shares are held in the electronic 
mode will be deemed to be the Member’s registered Email address for serving Company documents/notices 
as per provisions of the Act and the instructions of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. Members intending to 
refresh/update their email addresses should do so as soon as possible.

10.	 Members holding shares, in physical form, in identical order of names in more than one Folio, are requested to 
write to the Share Department of the Company/Share Transfer Agents enclosing the relevant Share Certificates 
requesting consolidation of such folios into one folio.

11.	 Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holding to dematerialized form 
to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares. Members can contact the Company’s Registrar and Transfer 
Agents, Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. for assistance in this regard.

12.	 As per the provisions of the Act, the facility for making nominations is available to individuals holding shares in the 
company. The Nomination Form-2B, prescribed by the Government for the purpose, can be obtained from the Share 
Department of the Company / Share Transfer Agent.

	 The aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars has exempted companies from sending Annual Reports in physical 
mode. Accordingly, an electronic copy of the Annual Report is being sent to all the Members holding shares in 
dematerialized mode and whose e-mail addresses are available with the Depository Participant(s) as well as 
to all the Members holding shares in physical mode whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/
RTA for communication purposes. Procedure for obtaining the Annual Report, AGM notice as well as electronic 
voting (e-voting) instructions for Members whose e-mail addresses are not registered with the depositories or with 
RTA is provided herein and also available on the website of the Company. The Annual report is also available on 
the Company’s website https://vividglobalinds.com/website of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited https://www.
bseindia.com/ and the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. https://www.evoting.
nsdl.com/.

	 In view of the exemptions provided, no physical or hard copies of the Notice and the Annual Report will be sent to the 
shareholders who have not registered their e-mail addresses with the Company/RTA as well as to those specifically 
requesting for physical copy of the documents.

	 Members holding shares in electronic form who have registered/not registered their e-mail address, mobile number, 
address and bank details may please contact and validate/update their details with the Depository Participant.

13.	 Additional information pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
Secretarial Standards on General Meetings in respect of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the 
AGM is furnished and forms part of the Notice. The Directors have furnished the requisite consents/declarations for 
their appointment/re-appointment.

	 In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling 
the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.vividglobalinds.com. The Notice can also be 
accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com respectively and the 
AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.
evoting.nsdl.com.

	 AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 
MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 2/2021 dated January 13, 2021.
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14.	 Voting through Electronic Means(E-Voting):

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS 
UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on Friday, the 27.09.2024 (9.00 a.m.) and ends on Sunday, the 29.09.2024 (5.00 
p.m.). The voting by electronic means shall not be allowed beyond 5.00 p.m. on 29.09.2024. During the e-voting 
period, Members/Beneficial Owners of the Company, holding shares either in physical or dematerialized form, as 
on end of the day of business hours 20.09.2024 will be eligible to cast their vote electronically. Once the vote on 
a resolution is cast by the shareholder, it cannot be changed subsequently. The remote e-voting module shall be 
disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter.

Pankaj S. Desai, Practicing Company Secretaries, has been appointed as Scrutinizer having their office at 5/14, 
Malad C.H.S., Opp. Saraf Hall, Poddar Park, Malad (East), Mumbai – 400097, to scrutinize the e-voting process in 
a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding three (3) working days from the conclusion of the e-voting 
period unblock the votes in the presence of at least two (2) witnesses not in the employment of the Company 
and make a Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes cast in favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the 
Company.

The Results shall be declared within forty eight hours from the conclusion of the AGM of the Company. The Results 
declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website www.vividglobalinds.com 
and on the website of NSDL within two(2) days of passing of the resolutions at the AGM of the Company and 
communicated to BSE Limited (BSE) accordingly.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A)	 Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in 
order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders  Login Method
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL.

1.	 Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https://eservices.
nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home 
page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under 
‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. 
After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value 
added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will 
be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 
i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting.

2.	 If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://
eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://
eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
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3.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once 
the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), 
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see 
e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDLand 
you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

4.	 Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” 
facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL

Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through their user id 
and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest arehttps://web.cdslindia.
com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.
1.	 After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to see the E 
Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on 
NSDL to cast your vote.
If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at https://web.
cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat Account 
Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in 
the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be provided links for the 
respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress.

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in demat 
mode) login through their 
depository participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, 
you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected 
to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see 
e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you 
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 
Password option available at abovementioned website.



37th Annual Report 2023-24

10

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 
through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk 
by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 
1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk 
by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 
022- 23058738 or 022-23058542-43

B) 	 Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2.	 Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/
Member’ section.

3.	 A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown 
on the screen.

	 Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with 
your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting 
and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4.	 Your User ID details are given below :
Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

 Your User ID is:

a) 	 For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then 
your user ID is IN300***12******.

b) 	 For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your user 
ID is 12**************

c) 	 For Members holding shares in Physical 
Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the 
company
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then 
user ID is 101456001***

5.	 Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

a)	 If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your vote.

b)	 If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which 
was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ 
and the system will force you to change your password.

c)	 How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i)	 If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is 
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open 
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the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file 
is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for 
shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(ii)	 If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders 
whose email ids are not registered.

6.	 If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a)	 Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or 
CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b)	 Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.evoting.
nsdl.com.

c)	 If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.
co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address 
etc.

d)	 Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system 
of NSDL.

7.	 After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

8.	 Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9.	 After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.	 After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares 
and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

2.	 Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting your 
vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join 
General Meeting”.

3.	 Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4.	 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which 
you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

5.	 Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6.	 You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

7.	 Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.	 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/
JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly 
authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to shirdipankaj@hotmail.com with 
a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2.	 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the 
correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical 
User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.
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3.	 In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user 
manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 
1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id 
and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1.	 In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share 
certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) by email to info@vividglobalinds.com.

2.	 In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary 
ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN 
card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to info@vividglobalinds.com. If you are an Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 
(A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode.

3.	 Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password 
for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4.	 In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID 
correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1.	 The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote 
e-voting.

2.	 Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not 
casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be 
eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the EGM/AGM.

3.	 Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM. However, they will not 
be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM.

4.	 The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the 
day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1.	 Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. 
Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After 
successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join General meeting” menu against company 
name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM 
will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the 
members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may 
retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

2.	 Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3.	 Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 
during the meeting.

4.	 Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile 
Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended 
to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.
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	 Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance mentioning 
their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (info@vividglobalinds.com) from 23rd 
September, 2023 to 25th September, 2023. The same will be replied by the Company suitably.

5.	 The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM.

Details of Director seeking re-appointment at the Annual general Meeting [Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the Listing 
Regulation], are as follows:

1. Name of the Director Shri. Sumish Sudhir Mody Shri. Miten Sudhir Mody
2. DIN 00318652 02422219
3. Date of Birth 09/06/1972 14/12/1974
4. Date of Original Appointment 09/06/1993 11/08/2014

5. Experience in specific Areas
He is looking after Production, 
Marketing, Finance, Exports, Imports, 
Trading activities, Banking, etc.

He has experience in designing and 
production activity of managing a
chemical industry.

6. Qualifications M.B.A. (Finance & Marketing) from 
Rider University, U.S.A.

Bachelors of Science in Chemical 
Engineering (U.S.A) Graduate Diploma 
in Engineering Management (Australia)

7. No. of shares held in the 
company 986660 Equity shares 520320 Equity Shares

8. Relationship with other 
Directors

Smt. Meena Sumish Mody – Wife
Shri. Miten S. Mody – Brother
Shri Sumiran Sumish Mody – Son

Shri. Sumish Sudhir Mody – Brother
Smt. Meena Sumish Mody – Sister in 
law
Shri Sumiran Sumish Mody - Nephew

9. Directorships in other 
Companies

Vivid Intermediates Private Limited
Shlokee Builders And Developers 
Private Limited

Vivid Intermediates Pvt. Ltd.
Shlokee Builders And Developers Pvt. 
Ltd.

10.
Membership / Chairmanship
of Committees other than Vivid 
Global Industries Limited

Nil

1. Name of the Director Shri. Nainesh Desai
2. DIN 08452630
3. Date of Birth 08/05/1955
4. Date of Original Appointment 20/05/2019

5. Experience in specific Areas He has a rich work experience of 35 years in Industrial electronics industry in 
the field of marketing & Trading.

6. Qualifications Matriculate & Diploma in A/C & Refrigeration.

7. No. of shares held in the 
company Nil

8. Relationship with other 
Directors NA

9. Directorships in other 
Companies

Kesar Petroproducts Limited
Shreyas Intermediates Limited

10.
Membership / Chairmanship
of Committees other than Vivid 
Global Industries Limited

Nil
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTON 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The following statement sets out all material facts relating to the Ordinary and Special Business mentioned in the 
accompanying Notice:

Item No. 3

As per Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended by Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 which has become 
effective since September 12, 2018, total managerial remuneration payable by the Company to its directors, including 
managing director and whole-time director and its manager in respect of any financial year may exceed 11 % (eleven per 
cent) of the net profits of the Company calculated as per the Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, provided that the 
same has been approved by the shareholders of the Company by way of Ordinary Resolution/Special Resolution. The 
requirement of Central Government approval which was hitherto required has been done away with.

Pursuant to the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company in 
its meeting held on 08th August, 2024 recommended to pay overall managerial remuneration in respect of any financial 
year in excess of 11% of the net profits of the Company computed in the manner laid down in Section 198 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Except Shri. Sumish S. Mody, Shri. Miten Mody & Smt. Meena S. Mody, none of the Directors and Shri. Sumiran Sumish 
Mody, CFO, none of Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives is concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out in Item No. 3.

The Board of Directors recommends the resolution for approval by the members.

Item No. 4

Upon the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors re- appointed Shri. Miten 
S. Mody (holding DIN02422219) as Whole-time Director of the Company with effect from August 12, 2024 for a period of 
5(five) years subject to approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. The main terms and conditions of his 
re-appointment are furnished below:

Period of Appointment: 5 years from August 12, 2024 to August 11, 2029.

Salary

Rs. 1,25,000/- per month with authority to the Board of Directors of the Company to grant such increments with the said 
scale as it may determine from time to time.

Perquisites:

a. 	 Medical Reimbursement: Expenses incurred for self and family.

b. 	 Leave Travel Concession: For self and family, once in a year in accordance with the rules of Company.

c. 	 He shall be covered under the Personal Accident Insurance Policy as per the rules of the Company.

d. 	 Provisions for use of Company’s car and telephone and mobile at Residence (not to be considered as perquisites).

e. 	 The company shall pay fee of clubs as per rules of the Company, subject to maximum of two clubs.

The perquisites wherever applicable, shall be valued as per the Income Tax Rules, 1962.

Where in any financial year, during the tenure of the term of Mr. Miten Sudhir Mody, Whole time Director of the Company, 
if the company incurs a loss or its profits are inadequate, it shall pay to Mr. Miten Sudhir Mody, remunerations and 
perquisites within the limits specified in Part II of schedule V of the said Act, or such other limits as may be prescribed by 
the Central Government from time to time as minimum remuneration.
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Other Terms:

a. 	 Reimbursement of expenses: Reimbursement of travelling, entertainment and other expenses incurred by him 
during the course of the business of the Company as per the rules of the Company.

b. 	 He shall not become interested or otherwise be connected directly or through his wife and/or dependent children in 
any selling agency of the Company without prior approval of the Central Government.

c. 	 The appointment may be terminated by the Company or by Mr. Miten Sudhir Mody by giving not less than three 
months prior notice in writing.

In the event of death during the term of his office, the Company shall pay to Mr. Miten Sudhir Mody’s legal heirs his full 
salary and other emoluments for that month and three months thereafter.

The directors are of the opinion that Mr. Miten Sudhir Mody’s knowledge and experience will be of immense value to the 
Company. The Directors therefore recommends the resolution for approval of Members.

Except Shri Miten S. Mody, Shri Sumish Mody & Smt. Meena S. Mody, none of the Directors and Shri Sumiran sumish 
Mody, CFO, none of the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives is concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out in Item No. 4.

Item No. 5

The tenure of Shri. Nainesh Desai as Independent director is expired on 19-05-2024. The Board of Directors of the 
Company vide circular resolution, had re-appointed Shri. Nainesh Desai as Non-Executive Independent Director subject 
to the approval of shareholders in the AGM, to hold office for another period of five years with effect from 20th May 2024 
to 19th May 2029 and that he shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

The Company has received Notice under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a member proposing Shri. 
Nainesh Desai as a candidate for office of Independent Director of the Company.

The Company has received a declaration of independence from Shri. Nainesh Desai. In the opinion of the Board, Shri. 
Nainesh Desai fulfills the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 read with requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for his appointment as an Independent Director of the Company. The 
brief resume of the said Director, nature of his expertise in specific functional areas, disclosure of relationships between 
directors, chairmanships/ directorships/memberships of the committees of the Board of listed entities, his shareholding 
etc. are set-out in Annexure to this Notice.

Except Shri. Nainesh Desai, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are in 
any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

The Board recommends resolution under Item No. 5 to be passed as a special resolution.

REGISTERED OFFICE					     For and on behalf of the Board
D-21/1 M.I.D.C., Tarapur, Via Boisar, 
Dist. Palghar – 401506, Maharashtra				            Sd/-
 						        	          SUMISH S. MODY
							           MANAGING DIRECTOR
Dated: 08.08.2024					                DIN: 00318652
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To the Members,

Your directors have pleasure in presenting the Thirty Seventh Annual Report together with the Audited Statement of 
Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024.

1.	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & RESULTS

a.		  FINANCIAL SUMMARY :

	 Financial summary and performance highlights of your Company, for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 
are as follows

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Income from Operations & Other income excluding Excise &VAT (GST) 3487.00 3663.25
Profit/(Loss) before Depreciation & Interest 145.55 106.37
Less: Depreciation & Interest 121.99 109.30
Net Profit / (Loss) before Exceptional items and Tax 23.56 (2.93)
Less: Prior years adjustments, Current tax, Deferred tax etc. 2.23 15.89
Less: Exceptional items/Prior Period Items 3.08 --
Net Profit / (loss) after tax 18.25 (18.82)
Net Profits after Dividends 18.25 (18.82)
Add/Less: Profit/(Loss) Brought forward 883.51 902.33
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 901.76 883.51

b.	 OPERATIONS:

	 Due to the ongoing vulnerabilities of our domestic economy & the global market dislocation the Company 
has recorded a marginally lower total income of Rs.3487.00 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 3663.25 Lakhs for the 
previous year but however the company has reported a reported a profit after tax of Rs. 18.25 lakhs in the 
current year as against a net loss after tax of Rs.18.82 Lakhs for the previous year.

c.	 FUTURE PROSPECTS:

	 Looking at the current scenario, the F.Y. 2024-25 will be most challenging year for the Dyes & Dye Intermediate 
Industry and it all depends upon how the recession and inflationary pressures will affect the industry and on 
that basis only the market can stabilize.

d.	 DIVIDEND:

	 In order to plough back the entire profits after tax into the business of the company, no dividend was 
recommended by the board of directors.

e.	 CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL:

	 There is no change in the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company as on 31st March 2024, which was 
Rs.4,56,44,350/- comprising of 91,28,870 Shares of Rs.5/- each. The company has not issued shares with 
differential voting rights nor granted stock options nor sweat equity during the period under review.

f.	 DEPOSITS:

	 Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.
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g.	 MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:

	 The Management Discussion and Analysis Report as required under the Listing Regulations, which form an 
integral part of this Report, is set out as separate “Annexure C”.

h.	 FINANCE:

	 Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31, 2024 was Rs.2,00,48,800/-. The company continues to focus on 
judicious management of its working capital, receivables, inventories and other working capital parameters 
which were kept under strict check through continuous monitoring.

i.	 SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

	 The Company does not have any subsidiary.

j.	 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

	 All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length basis and 
were in the ordinary course of the business. The disclosure of material Related Party Transaction in FORM 
AOC-2 is given in “Annexure A” to this report.

k.	 PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

	 The company has not given any loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The details of the investments made by company are given in the notes to the financial 
statements.

2.	 DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

	 As per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Shri. Sumish S. Mody, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting and being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends his re-
appointment. Shri. Miten Mody (DIN: 02422219) was re-appointed as a Wholetime Director of the company from 12th 
August, 2019 to 11th August, 2024. Considering the performance evaluation, contributions to the Company during his 
term of office, their background, qualification and experience and based on the recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, the Board proposed the re-appointment of Shri. Miten Mody subject to the approval 
of the shareholders in the AGM for another term of 5 years with effect from 12th August, 2024. Further, Mr. Nainesh 
Sumantrai Desai, Non-Executive Independent Director who was appointed on 20th May, 2019 for a term of 5 years 
is also based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the board proposed his re-
appointment for second term of 5 years commencing from 20th May, 2024 till 19th May, 2029, subject to the approval 
of the shareholders in the ensuing AGM.

•	 DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

	 The Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the Board that they fulfill all the requirements 
as stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 so as to qualify themselves to be appointed as 
Independent Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations and the 
relevant rules. In the opinion of the Board, they fulfill the conditions of independence as specified in the Act 
and Rules made thereunder and are independent of the Management.

•	 BOARD EFFECTIVENESS :

i.	 Familiarization Programme For Independent Directors

	 Pursuant to requirements of the Listing Regulations, the Company has a familiarization programme for 
Independent Directors with regard to their role, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the 
industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company etc. The Board Members 
are provided with all necessary documents/ reports and internal policies to enable them to familiarize 
with the Company’s procedures and practices. Periodic presentations are made at the Board and Board 
constituted Committee Meetings pertaining to business and performance updates of the Company, global 
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business environment, business strategies and risks involved. Directors attend training programme/
conferences on relevant subject matters and keep themselves abreast of the latest corporate, regulatory 
and industry developments.

	 The same has been posted on website of the Company viz; www.vividglobalinds.com

	ii.	 Board Evaluation

	 Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, 2015, the evaluation 
of the performance of the Board as well as of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been carried out. The performance evaluation 
of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board and the performance evaluation of the 
Chairman and Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors.

3.	 DISCLOSURES RELATED TO BOARD, COMMITTEES AND POLICIES

a.		  BOARD MEETINGS:

	 During the year 4 (Four) Board Meetings and 4 (Four) Audit Committee Meetings were convened and held. 
The details of which are given in the Corporate Governance Report.

b.	 DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

	 In terms of Section 134(3) and 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the directors would like to state that:

i)	 In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed.

ii)	 The directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for the year under 
review.

iii)	 The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

iv)	 The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

v)	 The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such 
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

vi)	 The directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such system were adequate and operating effectively.

c.	 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

	 The details pertaining to the composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are included in the 
Report on Corporate Governance, which forms part of this Report.

	 The Board has on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, framed a policy for 
selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration. The Remuneration Policy 
is stated in the Corporate Governance Report.
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d.	 AUDIT COMMITTEE:

	 The details pertaining to the composition of the Audit Committee are included in the Report on Corporate 
Governance, which forms part of this Report.

	 During the year under review, there was no instance wherein the Board had not accepted any recommendation 
of the Audit Committee.

e.	 VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY FOR THE DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES:

	 The Company has a vigil mechanism named Fraud and Risk Management Policy to deal with instance of fraud 
and mismanagement, if any.

	 In staying true to our values of Strength, Performance and Passion and in line with our vision of being one 
of the most respected companies in India, the Company is committed to the high standards of Corporate 
Governance and stakeholder responsibility.

	 The Company has a Fraud Risk and Management Policy to deal with instances of fraud and mismanagement, 
if any. The FRM Policy ensures that strict confidentiality is maintained whilst dealing with concerns and also 
that no discrimination will be meted out to any person for a genuinely raised concern.

	 A high level Committee has been constituted which looks into the complaints raised. The Committee reports 
to the Audit Committee and the Board.

f.	 INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

	 The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its 
operations. The scope and authority of the Internal Audit function is defined in the Internal Audit Manual. To 
maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee of the Board & to the Chairman of the Company. The Internal Auditor appointed by the Company 
viz. Shri. Mihir Poria monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in the 
Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the 
Company. The Board addresses significant issues raised by both the Internal Auditors and Statutory Auditors.

g.	 BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT :

	 Integrated enterprise risk management framework is in existence under which the common prevailing risks in 
the Company are identified, the risks so identified are reviewed on periodic basis by the Audit Committee and 
the management’s actions to mitigate the risk exposure in a timely manner are assessed.

	 A risk management policy under the above said enterprise risk management framework as approved by the 
Board has been adopted by the Company and being reviewed on yearly basis.

	 At present the company has not identified any element of risk which may threaten the existence of the company.

h.	 REMUNERATION DETAILS PURSUANT TO COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF 
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS :

•	 Information pursuant to Rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014:-

i.	 The percentage of increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company 
during the financial year 2023-24, ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median 
remuneration of the employees of the company for the financial year 2023-24 and the comparison 
of remuneration of each KMP against the performance of the company are as under:
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ii.

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director/ 
KMP and designation

Remuneration 
of the 
Director/ 
KMP for the 
financial year 
2023-24

% increase in 
remuneration 
in the 
financial year 
2023-24

Ratio of 
remuneration of 
each Director/ 
to median 
remuneration of 
employees

Comparison 
of the 
remuneration of 
the KMP against 
the performance 
of employees

1. Shri. Sumish S. Mody–
Managing Director

Rs. 49,20,000/- -10.38% 17.45:1 The remuneration 
of the Directors 
& KMPs is well 
within the industry 
limits and in 
tandem with the 
performance of 
the company

2. Shri. Miten S Mody–
Wholetime Director

Rs. 15,00,000/- 0.00% 5.32:1

3. Shri. Sudhir Mulji Mody 
– CFO (From 1st April, 
2023 to 31st July, 2023)
Shri. Sumiran S Mody-
CFO (KMP) (From 1st 
August, 2023 to 31st 
March, 2024)

Rs. 6,40,000/-

Rs. 12,00,000/-

20.00% 
(Considering 
the total 
salary paid to 
CFO for the 
year 2023-24)

6.52:1

4. Smt. Nilam P. Bajoria– 
Company Secretary 
(KMP)

Rs. 1,86,000/- 0.00% 0.66:1

iii.	 The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year was Rs. 2.82 
Lakhs;

iv.	 In the financial year, there was no change in the median remuneration of employees;
v.	 There were 44 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 31st March, 2024;
vi.	 Relationship between average increase/ decrease in remuneration and company performance:
	 The Profit before Tax for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 stood at Rs.20,47,862/- from the 

loss of Rs.2,92,818/- posted in the same period last year. There was a little change in the median 
remuneration from 2.64 lakhs to 2.82 lakhs. The average increase in median remuneration was in 
line with the increase in the inflation for the year.

vii.	 Comparison of Remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel(s) against the performance of the 
Company:

	 The total remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel was Rs. 64,20,000/- for the FY 2023-24 as 
compared to Rs. 69,90,000/- for the FY 2022-23. Whereas profit before tax stood at Rs. 20,47,862/- 
from the loss of Rs. 2,92,818/- posted in the same period last year.

                           viii.    a) 	 Variations in the market capitalization of the Company: The market capitalization as on 31st 
March, 2024 was Rs. 1,472.49 Lakhs (Rs. 1,650.49 Lakhs as on 31st March, 2023).
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b) 	 Earnings ratio of the Company was 0.20 as at 31st March, 2024 and was (0.21) as at 31st 
March, 2023.

ix.	 Minor increase in the salary of employees due to the increase in inflation is made other than the 
managerial personnel in the last financial year i.e. 2023-24.

x.	 The key parameters for the variable component of remuneration availed by the Directors are 
considered by the Board of Directors based on the recommendations of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

xi.	 During the year ended 31st March, 2024, there was no employee, who is not a Director of the 
Company and received remuneration in excess of highest paid Director of the Company.

xii.	 It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

xiii.	 The Remuneration paid to the managerial personnel is well within section II of Part-II of schedule 
V of the companies (appointment and remuneration of managerial Personnel) Rules,2014, in case 
of inadequate Profits or loss during the year.

•	 Information pursuant to Rule 5(2) and (3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:- There was no employee, who is paid in excess of the 
limit as specified in the rule.

4.	 AUDITORS AND REPORTS

	 The matters related to Auditors and their Reports are as under:

a.	 OBSERVATIONS OF STATUTORY AUDITORS ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024:

	 There are no qualifications, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made by statutory auditor in his 
report. The observations made by the Statutory Auditors in their report for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2024 read with the explanatory notes therein are self-explanatory and therefore, do not call for any further 
explanation or comments from the Board under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

b.	 SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024:

	 Pursuant to provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the company has appointed Pankaj S Desai, a firm of 
company Secretaries in practice, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Secretarial Audit 
report of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 in the prescribed Form MR-3 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed herewith as 
“Annexure B”.

c.	 STATUTORY AUDITORS:

	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014, M/s. K.M. KAPADIA & ASSOCIATES, Chartered Accountants (Firm Reg No. 104777W) the 
auditors of the Company has been appointed by the Shareholders at the 35th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company held on 29th September, 2022 for a period of 5 years i.e. upto conclusion of 40th Annual General 
Meeting on a remuneration (including terms of payment) fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company, 
based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, plus applicable taxes, as may be applicable, and 
reimbursement of all out-of-pocket expenses in connection with the audit of the accounts of the Company for 
the years ending March 31, 2023 upto March 31, 2027.

	 In this regard, the Company has received a Certificate from the Auditors to the effect that their appointment as 
Auditors continues to be in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
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d.	 INTERNAL AUDIT:

		  Shri. Mihir Poria, Internal Auditor of the Company has carried out audit on various expense heads of the 
Company and site and inventory management. The findings of the Internal Auditors are discussed on an on-
going basis in the meetings of the Audit Committee and corrective actions are taken as per the directions of 
the Audit Committee. The Board of Directors has in their meeting held on 08th August, 2024 re-appointed Mr. 
Mihir Poria, as Internal Auditor for the year 2024-25.

5.	 OTHER DISCLOSURES

	 Other disclosures as per provisions of Section 134 of the Act read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are 
furnished as under:

a.	 EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

	 The Annual Return for FY 2023-24 as per provisions of the Act and Rules thereto, is available on the Company’s 
website at www.vividglobalinds.com

b.	 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

i.	 Though the Company’s manufacturing operations do not involve substantial energy consumption, the 
Company has taken adequate steps to improve energy utilization wherever possible.

ii.	 Additional investments and proposals for reduction of consumption of energy- No additional investments 
made during the year.

iii.		 Impact of the above measures: Nil

iv.		 Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production: “FORM – A” Not Applicable.

c.	 TECHNICAL ABSORPTION, ADAPTION AND INNOVATION:

i.	 The Company is having in-house R&D facilities for all its products and doing continuous research for its 
improvement.

ii.	 The Company is examining possibilities of new technology to improve the quality and yield of the products 
development by in-house technical personnel.

iii.	 Imported Technology: No technology was imported by the Company during the year under review.

d.	 INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

	 During the year under review, your Company enjoyed cordial relationship with workers and employees at all 
levels.

e.	 FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

i.	 Activities relating to export, initiative taken to increase exports, development of new export markets 
for products and services. During the current year, the Company has exported its products to Far 
East Countries. Efforts are being made to develop new markets and the Company expects substantial 
increase in exports during the current year.
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ii.	 Total Foreign Exchange.

•	 Outgo - Rs.19,75,751/-

•	 Earned – Rs.11,19,96,029/-

f.	 CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

	 There is no change in the nature of business of the Company.

g.	 THE DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 
OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN 
FUTURE:

	 There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which would impact 
the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

h.		  MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS:

	 There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company which 
occurred between the end of the financial year 31st March, 2024 to which the financial statements relates and 
the date of signing of this report.

i.		  CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

	 The Corporate Governance, which form an integral part of this Report, are set out as separate Annexure D, 
together with the Certificate from the auditors of the Company regarding compliance with the requirements of 
Corporate Governance as stipulated in Listing Regulations.

j.	 PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORK PLACE:

	 As per the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & 
Redressal) Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and Rules made thereunder, your Company has adopted a policy for prevention 
of sexual harassment at work place and has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee. During the year, 
the Company has not received any complaints on sexual harassment under the said Act.

k.		  REPORTING OF FRAUD:

	 The Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud as specified under the second provision of Section 
143(12) of the Act.

l.	 HUMAN RESOURCES (HR):

	 The Company’s HR policies and procedures are designed to recruit and retain the best talent to support the 
operations of your Company and to align the interests of all employees with the long term organizational goals.

6.		  GENERAL

	 Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no 
transactions on these items during the year under review:

a.	 Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.
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b.	 Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

c.	 Issue of sweat equity shares to employees of the Company under any scheme.

d.	 Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company receive any remuneration or 
commission from any of its subsidiaries.

e.	 No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going 
concern status and Company’s operations in future.

f.	 No revision of Financial Statements has been done during the year under review.

7.		  LISTING OF SHARES

		  Your Company’s shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited. Listing fees of BSE Limited has been 
paid within the stipulated time period.

8.	 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS AND APPRECIATION:

	 The Board of Directors wishes to express its gratitude and record its sincere appreciation for the commitment and 
dedicated efforts put in by all the employees. Your Director take this opportunity to express their grateful appreciation 
for the encouragement, co-operation and support received by the Company from the local authorities, bankers, 
customers, suppliers and business associates. The Directors are thankful to the esteemed shareholders for their 
continued support and the confidence reposed in the Company and its management.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: 08.08.2024
Place: MUMBAI

Sd/-
SUMISH S. MODY

MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN:00318652

Sd/-
MITEN SUDHIR MODY

WHOLETIME DIRECTOR
DIN:02422219
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ANNEXURE-A

Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length 

transactions under third proviso thereto

1. 	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL

2. 	 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

(a) 	 Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:

1. 	 Vivid Intermediates Pvt. Ltd. – Associate Company

2. 	 Sumichem Corporation- Partnership Firm (Enterprises over which Key Management Persons have 
significant influence)

3. 	 Vivid Chemical- Partnership Firm (Enterprises over which Key Management Persons have significant 
influence)

(b) 	 Nature of transactions: Salaries, Job work charges paid, Rent Paid, Reimbursement of expenses & Professional 
Fees Paid

(c) 	 Duration of the transactions: April 2023 - March 2024

(d) 	 Salient terms of the transactions including the value, if any: Salaries, Rent Paid, Reimbursement of 
expenses, Professional fees paid etc. at arm’s length basis. (for details of transactions during the year refer 
Note No. 6 (II) of Financial Statement)

(e) 	 Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 20/05/2023

(f) 	 Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: 08.08.2024
Place: MUMBAI

Sd/-
SUMISH S. MODY

MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN:00318652

Sd/-
MITEN SUDHIR MODY

WHOLETIME DIRECTOR
DIN:02422219
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ANNEXURE-B
Form No. MR-3

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024

To,

The Members,

Vivid Global Industries Limited,

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by Vivid Global Industries Limited (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances 
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Vivid Global Industries Limited’s books, papers, minutes book, forms and returns filed 
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, 
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in 
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minutes book, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Vivid Global 
Industries Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 according to the provisions of:

1)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

2)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

3)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

4)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder. There was no Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

5)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’):-

a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015;

b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011;

c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

d)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

e)	  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2018.

f)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2021, (No 
instances for compliance requirements during the year);

g)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (No 
instances for compliance requirements during the year);
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h)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021, (No instances 
for compliance requirements during the year); and

i)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018, (No instances for 
compliance requirements during the year);

	 We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Listing Obligations entered into by the 
Company with Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE Limited);

6)	 Other laws applicable specifically to the Company

a)	 Factory act, 1948;

b)	 The Export and Import Policy of India;

c)	 Hazardous Waste (Management and Handling) Rules, 1989 amended 2000 and 2003;

d)	 Manufacture, Storage and Import of Hazardous Chemical Rules, 1989 amended 2000;

e)	 Chemical Accidents (Emergency Planning, Preparedness and Response) Rules, 1996;

f)	 Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991 amended 1992 and Rules;

g)	 The Gas Cylinder Rules, 2004;

h)	 The Static and Mobile Pressure Vessels (Unfired) Rules, 1981;

i)	 The Merchant Shipping Act, 1958 and amendments;

j)	 Labour Laws and other incidental Laws related to the employees appointed by the Company either on its 
payroll or on the contractual basis as related to the wages, provident fund, Gratuity, ESIC, Compensation etc;

k)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 / Foreign Direct Investment Policy;

l)	 Consumer Protection Act, 1986;

m)	 Acts Specified under the Direct and the Indirect tax;

n)	 Acts prescribed under the Environmental Protection, 15 Acts prescribed under the prevention and control of 
the pollution;

o)	 General Clauses Act, 1897.

	 We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its officers for the system and mechanism framed 
by the Company for compliances under other Acts, Laws and Regulations applicable to the Company as follows:

1)	 Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

2)	 Professional Tax Act, 1975 and Rules

3)	 Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

4)	 Contract Labour (R&A) Act, 1970

5)	 Employees State Insurance Act, 1948

6)	 Equal Remuneration Act, 1976

7)	 Minimum Wages Act, 1948

8)	 Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

9)	 Shop and Establishment Act, 1948

10)	 Income Tax Act, 1961

11)	 Central Excise Act, 1944
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During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. There are no changes in the composition of the Board of Directors during the period 
under review except for the re-appointment of Independent Directors Mr. Nitin Anant Zujam and Mr. Mahesh Shivram 
Gharat for another term of 5 years which was approved in the AGM vide Special resolution and are in compliance with 
the provisions of the Act.

We also report that as regards to the provisions of notices of board meeting, sending of agenda papers, holding of board 
meetings as laid down in the Act, are concerned, they are not strictly followed by the company.

Majority decisions are carried through, while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the 
minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, there were no major specific events/actions having a major bearing on the 
company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

SD/-

Pankaj S. Desai
Practicing Company Secretary:
ACS No.: 3398
C.P.No.: 4098
Peer Review No.:2702/2022

Place: Mumbai
Date: 08.08.2024
UDIN: A003398F000928841

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure I and forms an integral part of this 
report.
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Annexure I (Integral part of Secretarial Audit Report)
To,

The Members,
Vivid Global Industries Limited,

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. 	 Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. 	 We have followed the audit practices and processes as it was appropriate to obtain responsible assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts 
are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we follow provide a responsible 
basis for our opinion.

3. 	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the company.

4. 	 Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc.

5. 	 The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to verification of procedures on test basis.

6. 	 The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

SD/-

Pankaj S. Desai
Practicing Company Secretary:
ACS No.: 3398
C.P.No.: 4098
Peer Review No.:2702/2022

Place: Mumbai
Date: 08.08.2024
UDIN: A003398F000928841
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A.	 Industry Structure and Development

	 The Company is engaged in the business of production of dye intermediates particularly in N-Methyl J. Acid, derivatives 
of J. Acid, Tobias Acid, Tobias Acid purified Grade & Sulpho Tobias Acid. Further the Company undertakes job work 
of various dye industries. The main raw material J.Acid is imported from China.

B.	 Opportunities and Threats

	 Due to the ongoing Russia – Ukraine war, the Tourism, Hospitality & Fashion Industries have been severely impacted 
and the consumer spending has gone down by 80%, which has adversely effected the Dye Intermediate industry 
which has come under head winds. Also Due to the China deflation, they are offering low prices and dumping their 
products in India and giving unhealthy competition and due to this many Dye Intermediates plants have closed down. 
This will compel us to start new products. We have started R&D for the new product in our Plant and we anticipate 
some demand for this new product in the future.

C.	 Segment-wise Performance

	 The Company has only one business segment viz dye intermediates and dyes and hence product-wise performance 
is not provided.

D.	 Outlook

	 The F.Y. 2024-2025 is one of the challenging years for dye and dye intermediate industry. This scenario has not been 
seen in the last 2 decades and is going to continue for the following reasons.

1. 	 Our end consumer of Dye intermediates are Textile mills, most of which are situated in Bangladesh and due 
to the critical political situation in Bangladesh, there is no demand of their raw materials, which eventually 
effected sale of our main product N.Methyl J.Acid.

2. 	 Because of the Red Sea problem , all the ocean freight prices have increased substantially by almost 2 to 3 
fold the normal price which has also severely effected our export market.

3. 	 The war in Ukraine continues to be a challenge for us due to rise in prices Oil and Gas prices by 40% which in 
turn raises the basic chemical raw materials prices to the tune of 50% to 60%.

4. 	 Due to high levels of inflation and energy crises in USA , Europe and Far east countries, the consumer’s 
spending power has decreased. The rise of food prices has in turn made people spend on their needs more 
than their wants.

5. 	 As our industry is known to be cyclical and being in the period of the cyclical phase , inflation and recessionary 
pressures also hit us making us bear more losses and face a very big slump in demand.

6. 	 China is the biggest economy in the world and is facing deflation is one very big challenge for us. As China 
faces deflation, Chinese companies are proving to be unhealthy competition for India as they are dumping 
their products at such low prices that India cannot compete with them in a competitive point of view.

	 At the moment there are many dye and dye intermediates plants shut down due to a slump in demand and 
unhealthy competition from China which has come into effect and in most cases all the plants are running to 
the tune of 30% to 40% capacity only. So, looking at the above scenario, the F.Y.2024-2025 has almost gone 
into unhealthy competition, inflationary pressure and recession which has affected our revenue and profit and

	 we feel it will continue to be so till the above situations normalize . However, your Company is trying its best to 
get minimal profit margin.

ANNEXURE-C
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:
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E.	 Risk and Concerns

	 Since the price of our main raw material namely J. Acid is cheaper in the local & International market, the Company 
feels it is more viable to import rather than manufacturing at our Plant.

F.	 Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

	 The Company has satisfactory internal control system, the adequacy of which has been mentioned in the Auditors’ 
Report.

G.	 Human Resources

	 In the field of Human Resources, the Company has developed speedily water/air/land pollution control departments 
and hired qualified people for the same.
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In accordance with the Listing Agreements under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (the ‘Listing Regulations’) with BSE the report containing the details of the 
corporate governance systems and processes at Vivid Global Industries Limited is as follows:

1.	 COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to benchmarking itself with the best in all areas including Corporate Governance. The 
Company’s philosophy of Corporate Governance is aimed at strengthening the confidence among shareholders, 
customers, employees and ensuring a long term relationship of trust by maintaining transparency and disclosures. 
The Company is aiming at efficient conduct of the business in meeting its obligations to the shareholders.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct as required under Listing Regulations with the Stock Exchanges. The 
Directors have confirmed compliance with the code of conduct for the year ended 31st March, 2024.

The relevant standards of Corporate Governance have been fully complied by the Company.

2.	 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

a.	 Composition and size of the Board:

The present strength of the Board is 6 (Six). The Board comprises of 1 (one) Managing Director, 1(One) 
Executive Director, 1 (One) Non-Executive Director and the remaining are Independent Directors.

The size and composition of the Board confirms with the requirements of Corporate Governance under 
the Listing Regulations and applicable laws. The Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company do 
not have any other material or pecuniary relationship or transaction with the Company, its promoters, its 
management or its subsidiaries, which in the judgment of the Board may affect independence of judgments of 
the Directors. Non-Executive Directors are not paid any remuneration.

The particulars of Directors, Category, their attendance at the Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting, 
other Directorships and Memberships / Chairmanships in committees of other Companies as on 31st March, 
2024 are as under:

Directors Category Shares
Held

Attendance 
Particular

No. of other Directorship 
and Committee Membership/
Chairmanship held

Board
Meeting

Last
AGM

Director 
ships**

Committee
Member
ships***

Committee 
Chairman
ship

Shri. Sumish S. Mody MD 986660 4 Yes 3 1 -
Smt. Meena Sumish Mody NED 806178 4 Yes 1 1 -
Shri. Miten S. Mody WTD 520320 4 Yes 3 1 -
Shri. Nainesh Desai NED Nil 4 Yes 3 - -
Shri. Mahesh Shivram Gharat NED Nil 4 Yes 1 3 -
Shri. Nitin Anant Zujam NED Nil 4 Yes 1 - 3

**Including Directorships in Vivid Global Industries Limited

***Committees considered are Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Audit committee, Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee in Vivid Global Industries Limited

ANNEXURE-D
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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	 C: Chairman; MD: Managing Director; WTD: Whole Time Director; NED: Non – Executive Director; Directors 
who are Chairperson of the Committee have been included in list of members as well.

	 The Board periodically reviews compliance reports of all laws applicable to the company as well as steps taken 
by the Company to rectify instances of non-compliances, if any.

	 None of the Directors are Director in more than 20 Companies and member of more than 10 Committees or 
acts as a Chairman of more than 5 Committees. None of the Independent Directors serves as an Independent 
Director in more than seven listed companies.

b.	 Board Meetings, AGM and Attendance of Directors:

	 The Company’s Board of Directors plays primary role in ensuring good governance functioning of the 
Company. The Board meets at least once in a quarter to consider amongst other business, the performance 
of the Company and financial results.

	 During the year ended 31st March, 2024 the Board met 4 times. The Board Meetings were held on 20.05.2023, 
01.08.2023, 27.10.2023, and 29.01.2024. The Annual General Meeting for the financial year 2022-2023 was 
held on 29th September, 2023.

3.		  BOARD COMMITTEES

	 To enable better and more focused attention on the affairs of the Company, the Board delegates specific matters to 
Committees of the Board set up for the purpose. The Committees prepare the groundwork for decision making and 
report at the subsequent meeting of the Board of Directors.

	 Currently, the Board has three Committees viz. Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and 
Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee. The Board is responsible for the constitution, co-opting and fixing the terms 
of reference for the said Committees.

a.		  AUDIT COMMITTEE

	 Terms of Reference, Composition:

	 The term of reference of this committee covers the matters specified for Audit Committee under Regulation 18 
of the Listing Regulations. The Chairman of Audit Committee is Shri. Nitin Anant Zujam, Independent director 
of the Company.

	 The terms of reference of the Audit Committee include:

i.	 Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to 
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

ii.	 Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company;

iii.	 Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

iv.	 Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon before 
submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

•	 Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the 
Board’s report in terms of clause of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

•	 Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

•	 Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management.

•	 Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.

•	 Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.



37th Annual Report 2023-24

34

•	 Disclosure of any related party transactions.

•	 Qualifications in the draft audit report.

v.		  Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for 
approval;

vi.		  Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue 
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other 
than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring 
agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate 
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

vii.		 Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

viii.		 Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

ix.		  Scrutiny of Inter-corporate loans and investments;

x.		  Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

xi.		  Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

xii.		 Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the 
internal control systems;

xiii.		 Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage 
and frequency of internal audit;

xiv.		 Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

xv.		 Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting 
the matter to the board;

xvi.	 Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

xvii.	 To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

xviii.	 To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;

xix.	 Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

•	 Details of Composition of the Committee

The Composition of Audit Committee and attendance at its meetings is given hereunder:

Sr. No. Name of the Member Position

1. Shri. Nitin Anant Zujam Chairman

2. Shri. Mahesh Shivram Gharat Member

3. Shri. Sumish Sudhir Mody Member
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•	 Details of Committee Meetings and Attendance

During the Financial Year 2023-24, 4 (Four) meetings of the Audit Committee were held on 
20.05.2023, 01.08.2023, 27.10.2023, and 29.01.2024.

The table hereunder gives the attendance record of the Audit Committee members.

Name of the Members Number of Meetings 
Convened

Number of Meetings 
Attended

Shri. Nitin Anant Zujam 4 4

Shri. Mahesh Shivram Gharat 4 4

Shri. Sumish Sudhir Mody 4 4

Chief Financial Officer, Internal Auditors and Statutory Auditors were invitees to the meeting.

b.		  NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Broad terms of reference of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee is to ensure that the remuneration 
practices of the Company in respect of the Senior Executives including the Whole time Directors are competitive 
keeping in view prevalent compensation packages so as to recruit and retain suitable individual(s) in such 
capacity.

The Listing Regulations provide that a Company may appoint a Committee for recommending managerial 
remuneration payable to the Directors and KMPs which is approved by the Board of Directors and where 
necessary further approved by the shareholders through ordinary or special resolution as applicable. The 
Company has setup a remuneration committee for the said purpose. The main function of the Committee is 
to determine the remuneration payable to the Directors and KMP. The remuneration committee has met once 
during the year.

i.	 Terms of Reference:

•	 Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of 
directors and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel, and other personnel.

•	 Identifying and assessing potential individuals with reference to their expertise, skills, qualifications, 
attributes and personal and professional standing for appointment/reappointment as Directors/Key 
managerial Personnel in the Company.

•	 Support the Board of Directors for formulating policies for evaluation of performance of directors.

•	 Recommend compensation payable to the Executive Directors, Directors and Senior Managerial 
Personnel.

ii.	 Appointment and Remuneration Policy:

The Committee has adopted a Charter which, inter alia, deals with the manner of selection of Board of 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their remuneration. This Policy is accordingly derived from the 
said Charter. 

Criteria of selection of Non-Executive Directors:

The Non-Executive Directors shall be of high integrity with relevant expertise and experience so as to 
have a diverse Board with Directors having expertise in the fields of marketing, finance, taxation, law, 
governance and general management.
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In case of appointment of Independent Directors, the Committee shall satisfy itself with regard to the 
independent nature of the Directors vis-a-vis the Company so as to enable the Board to discharge its 
functions and duties effectively.

The Committee shall ensure that the candidate identified for appointment as a Director is not disqualified 
for appointment under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee shall consider the 
following attributes / criteria, whilst recommending to the Board the candidature for appointment as 
Director.

i.	 Qualification, expertise and experience of the Directors in their respective fields;

ii.	 Personal, Professional or business standing;

iii.	 Diversity of the Board.

In case of re-appointment of Non-Executive Directors, the Board shall take into consideration the 
performance evaluation of the Director and his engagement level. 

iii.	 Details of Composition of the Committee, Committee Meetings and Attendance:

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprised of the following members as on 31st March, 
2024.

Sr. No. Name of the Member Position

1. Shri. Nitin Anant Zujam Chairman
2. Shri. Mahesh Shivram Gharat Member
3. Shri. Miten Sudhir Mody Member

During the Financial Year 2023-24, 2 (Two) meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
was held on 20.05.2023 and 01.08.2023.

The table hereunder gives the attendance record of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
members.

Name of the Members Number of Meetings 
Convened

Number of Meetings 
Attended

Shri. Nitin Anant Zujam 2 2
Shri. Mahesh Shivram Gharat 2 2
Shri. Miten Sudhir Mody 2 2

iv.	 Nomination Remuneration Policy:

Details of Remuneration paid to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are as follows: 

The remuneration of the Whole time Directors is recommended by the remuneration committee based 
on factors such as industry benchmarks, the Company’s performance etc. Shri. Sumish Sudhir Mody, 
Managing Director of the Company, draws remuneration of Rs.49,20,000/- during the year. Other than 
above, Shri. Miten Sudhir Mody draws remuneration of Rs.15,00,000/-, Shri. Sudhir Muljibhai Mody 
draws remuneration of Rs.6,40,000/- (for a period between 1st April, 2023 to 31st July, 2023), Shri 
Sumiran Sumish Mody draws remuneration of Rs. 12,00,000/- (from 1st August, 2023 to 31st March, 
2024) and Smt. Meena Mody does not draw any remuneration apart from getting Director Sitting Fees.

Non-Executive Directors: 

The Company currently does not pay any compensation to Non-Executive Directors.
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c.	 STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

i.	 Scope of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee:

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee specifically looks into shareholders’ complaints, if any and 
to redress the same expeditiously. The Committee deals with various matters like share transfers, 
transmissions, issue of duplicate share certificates, approve the remat requests, request for consolidation 
of shares as and when received, and to generally deal with all investors related matters and redress the 
grievances of investors if any.

ii.	 Details of Composition of the Committee, Committee Meetings and Attendance:

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee consists of three Directors out of which, one Director is Executive 
Director and two Directors are Non-Executive Independent Director.

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee comprised of the following members as on 31st March, 2024:

Sr. No. Name of the Member Position

1. Shri. Nitin Anant Zujam Chairman

2. Shri. Mahesh Shivram Gharat Member

3. Smt. Meena Sumish Mody Member

During the Financial Year 2023-24, 4 (Four) meetings of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee were 
held on 20.05.2023, 01.08.2023, 27.10.2023 and 29.01.2024.

The table hereunder gives the attendance record of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee members.

Name of the Members Number of Meetings 
Convened

Number of Meetings 
Attended

Shri. Nitin Anant Zujam 4 4

Shri. Mahesh Shivram Gharat 4 4

Smt. Meena Sumish Mody 4 4

Smt. Neelam Bajoria is the Compliance Officer of the Company.

There are no complaints that have remained un-redressed. The brief terms of reference of Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee are as under: 

•	 To oversee the share transfer process.

•	 To monitor the redressal of stakeholders’ grievances.

•	 To consider and approve issue of share certificates on requests for duplicate certificates, 
consolidation of folios etc.

•	 To do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary or expedient for performing 
any of the above acts.

Meeting of Independent Directors

During the year under review, the independent Directors of the Company met on 29.01.2024 interalia, 
to discuss:

•	 Evaluation of performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors of the 
Company as a whole.
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•	 Evaluation of performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into views of Executive and 
Non-Executive Directors.

4.	 DETAILS OF GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

i.	 Annual General Meeting (AGM):

Financial Year Day and Date Time

2023-2024 Friday, 29/09/2023 11.00 a.m.

2022-2023 Thursday, 29/09/2022 11.00 a.m.

2021-2022 Wednesday, 29/09/2021 11.00 a.m.

5.	 LOCATION:

The Annual General Meetings were held through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM).

6.	 MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

i.	 The financial results of the Company are published in widely circulating National dailies such as Business 
Standard and Lakshadweep. These are not sent individually to the shareholder.

ii.	 The Company’s results or official news are displayed on the Company’s website. There were no presentations 
made to the institutional investors or to the analysts.

iii.	 The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms a part of this Annual Report.

7.	 OTHER DISCLOSURES:

i.	 There are no related party transactions made by the Company with its promoters, Directors or Management, 
their subsidiaries or relatives that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. The 
Register of Contracts containing the transactions in which Directors are interested is regularly placed before 
the Board for its approval. The transactions with the related parties are disclosed in the notes to accounts in 
the Annual Report.

1.	 The Company has complied with all the requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirement) Regulations, 2015 entered into with the Stock Exchange. There were no penalties or 
strictures imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchange, SEBI or other statutory authorities for non-
compliances of any matter related with capital market during the last three years.

ii.	 Code of Conduct:

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct which is applicable to the Members of the Board 
and all employees in the course of day to day business operations of the company. The Company believes in 
“Zero Tolerance” against bribery, corruption and unethical dealings / behaviors of any form and the Board has 
laid down the directives to counter such acts. The code laid down by the Board is known as “code of business 
conduct” which forms an Appendix to the Code. The Code has been posted on the Company’s website www.
vividglobalinds.com

The Code lays down the standard procedure of business conduct which is expected to be followed by the 
Directors and the designated employees in their business dealings and in particular on matters relating to 
integrity in the work place, in business practices and in dealing with stakeholders. The Code gives guidance 
through examples on the expected behavior from an employee in a given situation and the reporting structure.

All the Board Members and the Senior Management personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code. All 
Management Staff were given appropriate training in this regard.
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iii.	 CEO / CFO Certification:

As required under Regulation 17 of Listing Regulations, the Managing Director and CFO of the Company have 
certified to the Board regarding their review on the Financial Statements, Cash Flow Statements and matters 
related to internal control etc. in the prescribed format for the year ended 31st March, 2024.

iv.	 Prevention of Insider Trading:

The Company has adopted a Policy for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in securities 
by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The Rules requires pre-clearance for dealing 
in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company’s shares by the Directors and the 
designated employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company 
and during the period when the Trading Window is closed. The Board is responsible for implementation of the 
Policy. The Board of Directors and the designated employees have confirmed compliance with the Policy.

The same has been posted on website of the Company viz; www.vividglobalinds.com

8.	 General Shareholder Information:

a. AGM Day, Date, Time, Venue : Monday, the 30th September, 2024 at 11.00 a.m. through Video 
Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM)

b. Financial Calendar : 01.04.2023 to 31.03.2024
c. Unaudited Financial Results : 1st Quarter – 01.08.2023

2nd Quarter – 27.10.2023
3rd Quarter – 29.01.2024
4th Quarter – 17.05.2024 (Audited)

d. Book Closure Period : 24.09.2024 to 30.09.2024
e. Dividend Payment Date : In order to plough back the entire profits , no dividend was recommended 

by the board of directors.

f.	 The Shares of the Company are traded frequently on the Stock Exchange. High, Low, Market Price of Vivid 
Global Industries Limited on the Stock Exchange, Mumbai during each month between  April, 2023 to March, 
2024 (face value Rs.5/-per share) are as under:

Month High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) BSE INDEX High BSE INDEX Low

April, 2023 24.80 18.11 61,209.46 58,793.08
May, 2023 24.90 19.45 63,036.12 61,002.17
June, 2023 26.00 18.00 64,768.58 62,359.14
July, 2023 24.40 20.05 67,619.17 64,836.16
August, 2023 21.50 17.60 66,658.12 64,723.63
September, 2023 23.80 19.13 67,927.23 64,818.37
October, 2023 22.70 19.00 66,592.16 63,092.98
November, 2023 24.47 18.30 67,069.89 63,550.46
December, 2023 23.50 19.60 72,484.34 67,149.07
January, 2024 28.49 20.62 73,427.59 70,001.60
February, 2024 23.44 20.00 73,413.93 70,809.84
March, 2024 21.25 15.90 74,245.17 71,674.42
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g. 	 Listing on Stock Exchange at:

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed at the following Stock Exchanges:

The Stock Exchange, Mumbai, PhirozeJeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400001.

The Ahmedabad Stock Exchange, Opp. Sahajanand College, Panjarapole, Ahmedabad - 380015.

h.	 Stock/ Company/ Security/ Common Code:

The Stock Exchange, Mumbai

BSE Code: 524576

i.	 Registrar and Transfer Agents:

In Compliance with the SEBI Directive for all listed companies to have a common agency to handle physical and 
electronic share registry work, the Company has appointed Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. as the Registrar and Transfer 
Agent.Accordingly all documents, transfer deeds, Demat requests and other communications in relation thereto 
should be addressed to the R & T at its offices at C 101, 247 Park, L B S Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai - 400083.

Share Transfers are registered and returned within a period of 30 days from the date of receipt, if the documents 
are clear in all respect.

j.	 Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2024:

Distribution of Shares Number of 
Shareholders

% to total no. Number of Shares % to total

Upto 10 724 12.36% 2975 0.03%

11 To 25 287 4.90% 5438 0.06%

26 To 50 327 5.58% 13589 0.15%

51 To 100 543 9.27% 48656 0.53%

101 To 500 2616 44.66% 745545 8.17%

501 To 1000 741 12.65% 591570 6.48%

1001 To 5000 479 8.18% 1107393 12.13%

5001 To 10000 69 1.18% 532199 5.83%

10001 To 100000 62 1.06% 1408846 15.43%

100001 & Above 9 0.15% 4672659 51.19%

Total 5857 100.00% 9128870 100.00%
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k.	 Shareholding Pattern of the Company as on 31st March, 2024

Sr. Holders Physical Forms Electronic Form Total No. of Shares % of total

No. Holders Physical Forms Electronic Form Total No. of Shares % of total

2. Public 8,77,240 37,97,182 46,74,422 51.20%

TOTAL 8,77,240 82,51,630 91,28,870 100.00%

l. 	 Dematerialization of Shares & Liquidity

90.39% of the Company’s share capital is dematerialized as on 31st March, 2024. The Company’s shares are 
regularly traded on the BSE.

Address for Correspondence:
Vivid Global Industries Limited
C/o. Sumichem Corporation,
1-D, Dhannur Building,
Sir P.M.Road, Fort,
Mumbai – 400001

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: MUMBAI 
Date: 08.08.2024

Sd/-
MITEN SUDHIR MODY

WHOLETIME DIRECTOR
DIN:02422219

Sd/- 
SUMISH S. MODY

MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN:00318652
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CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors

M/s. Vivid Global Industries Limited

We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of Vivid Global Industries Limited for the financial year 
2023-24 and certify that:

These statements to the best of our knowledge and belief:

Do not contain any materially untrue statements or omit any material facts or contain statements that might be misleading.

Present a true and fair view of the Company‘s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws 
and regulations.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered into by the Directors and Senior Management Personnel 
during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and have evaluated the 
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company for such reporting. We have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit 
Committee, deficiencies, if any, in the design or operation of such internal controls, of which we are aware of and the steps taken 
and/or proposed to be taken to rectify these deficiencies.

We have also indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

Significant changes in Internal Controls with respect to financial reporting during the year. Significant changes in accounting 
policies during the Year and these have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no instances of significant fraud involving either the management or employees 
having a significant role in the Company’s internal control systems with respect to financial reporting.

FOR VIVID GLOBAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SD/-
SUMIRAN SUMISH MODY
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Place: Mumbai
Date: 08.08.2024
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PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE UNDER SUB-PARA 10(i) OF 
PART C OF SCHEDULE V OF SEBI (LODR), REGULATIONS, 2015

To,
The Members
Vivid Global Industries Limited

I, Pankaj S Desai, Practicing Company Secretary, hereby certify that I have examined and verified the records, books 
and papers of the Company VIVID GLOBAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED as required to be maintained under the Companies 
Act, 2013, SEBI Regulations, other applicable rules and regulations made thereunder, as regards the Directors of the 
Company for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2024.

I further certify that based on the examinations carried out by me and the explanations and representations furnished to 
me by the said Company, its officers and agents, none of the following Directors of the Company:

Sr. No. Name of the Director DIN Category

1 Shri. Sumish Sudhir Mody 00318652 Managing Director
2 Smt. Meena Sumish Mody 07994050 Non-Executive Director
3 Shri. Miten Sudhir Mody 02422219 Whole-Time Director
4 Shri. Mahesh Shivram Gharat 08272531 Independent Director
5 Shri. Nitin Anant Zujam 08272546 Independent Director
6 Shri. Nainesh Desai 08452630 Independent Director

have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Company by the SEBI or Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority as on 31st March, 2024.

SD/-
Pankaj S. Desai
Practicing Company Secretary:
ACS No.: 3398
C.P.No.: 4098
Peer Review No.:2702/2022

Place: Mumbai
Date: 08.08.2024
UDIN: A003398F000928949
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of

M/s VIVID GLOBAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of M/s VIVID GLOBAL INDUSTRIES 
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year 
then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of 
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of 
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

 This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards 
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the standalone Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the standalone 
Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation 
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone 
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair 
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view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31, 2024, and its Profit, total comprehensive income, its cash Flows and the changes in equity for the year ended 
on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. 	 As required by section 143 (3) of the Act we report, to the extent applicable that:

a. 	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. 	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books.

c. 	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive income, the Cash Flow 
Statement and Statement of changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant 
books of account.

d. 	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

e. 	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as 
a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. 	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls 
over financial reporting.

g. 	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. 	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone 
Ind AS financial statements;

ii. 	 The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for 
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts;

iii. 	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. 	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the order”) issued by the Central Government in 
terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order.

UDIN: 24039707BKARFH5075
For K M Kapadia & Associates	  			    
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 104777W

Kamlesh M Kapadia						      Date: 17th May 2024
Mem. No.: 039707						      Place: Mumbai
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report 
of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s VIVID GLOBAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and 
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that

(1) 	 Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) 	 Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
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(3) 	 Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in 
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial 
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India”.

UDIN: 24039707BKARFH5075
For K M Kapadia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 104777W

Kamlesh M Kapadia					     Date: 17th May 2024	
Mem. No.: 039707					     Place: Mumbai
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) 	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of 
fixed assets.

(a) 	 The Company has a program of verification of Fixed assets to cover all the items in a phased manner over 
have been physically verified by the management in a phased manner, designed to cover all the item over a 
period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature 
of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the management during 
the year. According to the information and explanations given to us no material discrepancies were noticed on 
such verification.

(b) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and based on the 
examination of the registered sale deeds, transfer deeds, mutation of title papers, property tax papers and 
conveyance deeds provided to us, we report that the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties in 
respect of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the company as at the balance sheet 
date.

(ii) 	 As explained to us, inventories of finished and semi-finished goods and raw materials were physically verified during 
the year by the Management. In respect of inventories of stores and spare parts and stocks at, the Company has 
a programme of verification of stocks over a three year period. In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the inventories have been verified by the management at reasonable intervals in relation 
to size of the Company and nature of business and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

(iii) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or 
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained 
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of which:

(i) 	 The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the 
Company’s interest. - Not Applicable

(ii) 	 The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments of 
principal amounts and interest have been regular as per stipulations. – Not Applicable

(iii) 	 Amounts referred to (ii) above have been overdue for more than 90 days and, as explained to us, the 
Management has taken reasonable steps for recovery of the principal amounts and interest thereon. –Not 
Applicable

(iv) 	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the 
provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans, making investments 
and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

(v) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit during the 
year. In respect of unclaimed deposits, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any 
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vi) 	 The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

(vii) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a)	 The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, 
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added 
Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. The Company has 
however not registered itself as required under the Gratuity Act and have informed us that they are in process 
of obtaining the same at the earliest.
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(b)	 There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, 
Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material 
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable.

(viii) 	In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in the 
repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions, banks and government and dues to debenture holders.

(ix) 	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, term loans taken have been applied by 
the Company during the year for the purposes for which they were raised.

(x) 	 To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company 
has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) 	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid / provided 
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read 
with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

(xii) 	 The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the CARO 2016 Order is not 
applicable.

(xiii) 	In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is in compliance with 
Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and 
the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable 
accounting standards.

(xiv) 	During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 
convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of CARO is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) 	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of its sister concerns or persons connected with 
them and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi) 	The company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

UDIN: 24039707BKARFH5075
For K M Kapadia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 104777W

Kamlesh M Kapadia 					     Date: 17th May 2024
Mem. No.: 039707 					     Place: Mumbai
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Particulars Note 
No.

 As at 
31st March 2024

 As at 
31st March 2023

` `
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1  4,69,54,800  5,39,27,069 
(b) Right of use assets
(c) Capital Work-in-Progress
(d) Investment Properties
(e) Goodwill
(f) Other Intangible Assets
(g) Intangible Assets Under Development
(h) Biological Assets Other Than Bearer Plants
(i) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 2  4,07,800  4,07,800 
(ii) Trade receivables 3  -   
(iii) Loans 4  -   
(iv) Other Financial Assets 5  -   

(j) Deferred Tax Assets (Net)  -   
(k) Other Non-current Assets 6  1,24,98,231  1,21,60,806 
SUB-TOTAL  5,98,60,831  6,64,95,675 
CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Inventories 7  11,39,84,447  11,33,79,931 
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 2  -    -   
(ii) Trade Receivables 3  6,78,27,231  6,62,91,130 
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 8  2,00,48,800  40,68,875 
(iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 9  2,42,18,291  2,62,22,666 
(v) Loans 4  4,04,000  1,45,000 
(vi) Other Financial Assets 5  76,325  38,281 

(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 10  -    -   
(d) Other Current Assets 6  24,16,090  17,98,246 
SUB-TOTAL  22,89,75,185  21,19,44,129 
Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale
TOTAL ASSETS 28,88,36,015  27,84,39,804 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(a) Equity share capital 11  4,56,44,350  4,56,44,350 
(b) Other equity 12  10,33,40,138  10,15,14,798 
LIABILITIES  14,89,84,488  14,71,59,148 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 13  6,02,543  9,12,422 
(ii) Trade Payable 14  -    -   
(iii) Other financial liabilities 15  8,53,824  9,32,500 

(b) Provisions 16  16,83,201  13,52,198 
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 17  46,51,767  57,64,849 
(d) Other non current liabilities 18  -   
SUB-TOTAL  77,91,335  89,61,969 
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 13  3,88,41,637  2,11,72,323 
(ii) Trade payables 14  9,20,32,708  10,14,40,503 
(iii) Other financial liabilities 15  -    -   

(b) Provisions 16  -    -   
(c) Other current liabilities 19  1,51,508  -5,34,083 
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 17  10,34,338  2,39,944 
SUB-TOTAL  13,20,60,192  12,23,18,687 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  28,88,36,015  27,84,39,804 

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

UDIN: 24039707BKARFH5075
For K.M.Kapadia and Associates
Chartered Accountants

Vivid Global Industries Limited

CA Kamlesh Kapadia
Mem. No.: 039707

Sd/-
Sumish Sudhir Mody 
Managing Director 
(DIN:00318652)

Sd/-
Meena Sumish Mody
Director 
(DIN:07994050)

Sd/-
Sumiran Sudhir Mody 
CFO 

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17th May 2024

Sd/-
Miten Sudhir Mody
Whole - time Director
(DIN:02422219)

Sd/-  
Neelam Pradeep Bajoria 
Company Secretary
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Particulars
Note 
No.

 For the year ended
31 March 2024 

 For the year ended
31 March 2023 

` `
Continuing Operations

I Revenue from operations 20  34,54,94,947  36,19,95,993 
II  Other Income 21  32,05,063  43,28,947 
III Total Revenue (I + II)  34,87,00,010  36,63,24,940 
IV EXPENSES

(a)   Cost of materials consumed 22  26,81,89,430  24,79,20,139 
(b)   Purchases of Stock-in-trade 23  15,31,000  2,21,65,000 
(c)   Changes in stock of finished goods, work-in- progress and stock-in-trade 24  -1,37,03,855  75,79,542 
(d)   Employee benefit expense 25  2,41,62,580  2,48,00,444 
(e)   Finance costs 26  43,84,448  31,19,230 
(f)    Depreciation and amortisation expense 27  78,14,102  78,10,357 
(g)   Impairment expenses/losses  -    -   
(h)   Other expenses 28  5,39,66,035  5,32,23,047 
Total Expenses  34,63,43,740  36,66,17,759 

V Profit/(loss)  before  exceptional  items  and  tax (III - IV)  23,56,270  -2,92,819 
VI Exceptional Items 29  3,08,408  -   
VII Profit/(loss) before tax (V - VI)  20,47,862  -2,92,819 
VIII Tax Expense

(1)   Current tax 17  13,35,605  5,96,877 
(2)   Deferred tax 17  -11,13,084  9,91,841 
Total tax expense  2,22,521  15,88,718 

IX Profit/(loss) after tax from continuing operations (VII-VIII )  18,25,340  -18,81,537 
X Discontinued Operations 

(1)   Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations  -                      -   
(2)   Tax Expense of discontinued operations  -                      -   

XI Profit/(loss) after tax from discontinued operations  -                      -   
XII Profit/(loss) for the period (IX + XI)  18,25,340  -18,81,537 
XIII Other comprehensive income

A     (i)   Items that will not be recycled to profit or loss
(a)   Changes in revaluation surplus                    -                      -   
(b)   Remeasurements   of   the   defined benefit liabilities / (asset)                    -                      -   
(c)   Equity  instruments  through  other comprehensive income                    -                      -   
(d)   Fair  value  changes  relating  to  own credit risk                    -                      -   
(e)   Others (specify nature)                    -                      -   

(ii)   Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss                    -                      -   
B     (i)   Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss                    -                      -   

(a)   Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of foreign operations                    -                      -   
(b)   Debt instruments through other comprehensive income                    -                      -   
(c)   Effective portion of gains and loss on designated portion of hedging instruments in a   
       cash flow hedge                    -                      -   

(d)   Share of other comprehensive income of equity accounted investees                    -                      -   
(e)   Others (specify nature)                    -                      -   

(ii)  Income   tax   on   items   that   may   be reclassified to profit or loss                    -                      -   
XIV Total comprehensive income for the period (XIV + XII)  18,25,340  -18,81,537 
XV Earnings   per   equity   share   (for   continuing operation):

(1)   Basic  0.20  -0.21 
(2)   Diluted  0.20  -0.21 

XVI Earnings  per  equity  share  (for  discontinued operation):
(1)   Basic
(2)   Diluted

XVII Earnings  per  equity  share  (for  continuing  and discontinued operations):
(1)   Basic  0.20  -0.21 
(2)   Diluted  0.20  -0.21 

Profit and loss statement for the year ended 31st March 2024

UDIN: 24039707BKARFH5075
For K.M.Kapadia and Associates
Chartered Accountants

Vivid Global Industries Limited

CA Kamlesh Kapadia
Mem. No.: 039707

Sd/-
Sumish Sudhir Mody 
Managing Director 
(DIN:00318652)

Sd/-
Meena Sumish Mody
Director 
(DIN:07994050)

Sd/-
Sumiran Sudhir Mody 
CFO 

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17th May 2024

Sd/-
Miten Sudhir Mody
Whole - time Director
(DIN:02422219)

Sd/-  
Neelam Pradeep Bajoria 
Company Secretary
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Particulars
 For the year ended 

31st March 2024
 For the year ended 

31st March 2023
` `

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax for the year Adjustments for:  20,47,862  -2,92,818 
Income tax epense recognised in profit or loss  
Finance costs recognised in profit or loss   43,84,448  31,19,230 
Investment income recognised in profit or loss  
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary  
Gain on disposal of interest in former associate  
Net (gain)/loss recorded in profit or loss on financial liabilities designated as at fair 
value through profit or loss
Net (gain)/loss arising on financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value 
through profit or loss
Net loss/(gain) arising held for trading financial liabilities  
Hedge ineffectiveness on cash flow hedges  
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets  
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables  
Reversal of impairment loss on trade receivables  
Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets   78,14,102  78,10,357 
Impairment of non-current assets  
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss  
Expense recognised in respect of equity-settled share-based payments
Expense recognised in respect of shares issued in exchange for goods/services
Difference in the interim dividend adjusted
Amortisation of financial guarantee contracts 

14,246,412 10,636,768
Movements in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables   3,75,43,402  2,16,60,298 
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from customers under construction contracts  -5,48,070 
(Increase)/decrease in inventories   -6,04,516  -60,28,500 
(Increase)/decrease in other assets   -38,043  4,271 
Decrease in trade and other payables   -94,07,794  -26,40,190 
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to customers under construction contracts
Increase/(decrease) in provisions   -3,83,62,033  6,09,847 
(Decrease)/increase in deferred revenue  
(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities   3,39,205  -20,63,129 
Cash generated from operations  37,16,632  2,16,31,294 
Income taxes paid   -13,35,605  -5,96,877 
Proposed Dividend
Net cash generated by operating activities  23,81,027  2,10,34,417 
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments to acquire financial assets  -8,41,831  -20,29,488 
Proceeds on sale of financial assets 
Interest received 
Royalties and other investment income received 
Dividends received from associates 
Other dividends received 
Amounts advanced to related parties 
Repayments by related parties 

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
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Payments for property, plant and equipment 
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 
Payments for investment property 
Proceeds from disposal of investment property 
Payments for intangible assets 
Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries 
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiary 
Net cash inflow on disposal of associate 
Net cash (used in)/generated by investing activities  -8,41,831  -20,29,488 
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity instruments of the Company  
Proceeds from issue of convertible notes  
Payment for share issue costs  
Payment for buy-back of shares  
Payment for share buy-back costs  
Proceeds from issue of redeemable preference shares  
Proceeds from issue of perpetual notes  
Payment for debt issue costs  
Proceeds from borrowings   1,76,69,312  5,09,031 
Repayment of borrowings   -8,48,511  -2,08,74,944 
Proceeds from government loans  
Proceeds on disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary that does not involve loss of 
control 
Dividends paid on redeemable cumulative preference shares  
Dividends paid to owners of the Company  
Reduction in Dividend Paid for FY 2018-19
Interest & Other Finance Cost paid   -43,84,448  -31,19,230 
Net cash used in financing activities  1,24,36,353  -2,34,85,143 
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  1,39,75,549  -44,80,214 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  3,02,91,541  3,47,71,755 
Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash held in foreign currencies  -    -   
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year.  4,42,67,090  3,02,91,541 
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow Statement   
Cash and cash equivalents ( incl. Other Bank Balance)  4,42,67,090  3,02,91,541 
Bank overdraft - -
Balance as per statement of Cash Flows  4,42,67,090  3,02,91,541 

Notes

(a	 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind 
AS-7) - Statement of Cash Flow.

(b)	 Non cash items : No transactions

(c)	 Changes in liability arising from financing activities

UDIN: 24039707BKARFH5075
For K.M.Kapadia and Associates
Chartered Accountants

Vivid Global Industries Limited

CA Kamlesh Kapadia
Mem. No.: 039707

Sd/-
Sumish Sudhir Mody 
Managing Director 
(DIN:00318652)

Sd/-
Meena Sumish Mody
Director 
(DIN:07994050)

Sd/-
Sumiran Sudhir Mody 
CFO 

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17th May 2024

Sd/-
Miten Sudhir Mody
Whole - time Director
(DIN:02422219)

Sd/-  
Neelam Pradeep Bajoria 
Company Secretary
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Note 2

FINANCIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENT

PARTICULARS As  at 31 March 2024 As  at 31 March 2023

 No.of Share  Amount  No.of Share  Amount 

Non Current Investment

Unquoted
Investement in Equity Instruments
VIPL  3,800  3,800  3,800  3,800 
Tarapur Environment Protection Soceity  2,422  3,84,000  2,422  3,84,000 
TIMA CEPT CO-OP SOC. SHARES  200  20,000  200  20,000 

TOTAL  6,422  4,07,800  6,422  4,07,800 

Current Investment

Quoted  -    -    -    -   
Unquoted  -    -    -    -   

TOTAL  -  -  -  -

Note 3

FINANCIAL ASSETS - TRADE RECEIVABLES

PARTICULARS  As at 31 March 2024  As at 31 March 2023 
Non Current Trade Receivables
Secured & Considered Good  -    -    -    -   
Secured & Considered Bad  -    -    -    -   
Unsecured & Considered Good  -    -    -    -   
Unsecured & Considered Bad  -    -   -   -  

TOTAL                     -                       -                       -                       -   
Current Trade Receivables
Secured & Considered Good
Secured & Considered Bad
Unsecured & Considered Good
Export Trade Receivables  2,88,86,955  1,41,16,135 
Local Trade Receivables  3,89,40,276  6,78,27,231  5,21,74,995  6,62,91,130 
Unsecured & Considered Bad  -    -    -    -   

TOTAL  6,78,27,231  6,62,91,130 

The Confirmation of the Trade Receivables have not been provided as at the time of completion of the Audit and hence 
the Debtors have been considered as certified by the Management.

Trade Receivable has been provided as security against Bank’s Credit Facility availed.
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Note 4

FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS 

PARTICULARS  As at 31 March 2024  As at 31 March 2023

Non Current Loans

Unsecured, considered good unless 
otherwise stated

Unsecured considered doubtful

TOTAL  -  -

Current Loans

Unsecured, considered good unless 
otherwise stated

Loans to Related Parties  -    -   

Loans to Directors  -    -   

Loans to Employees  4,04,000  1,45,000 

Other loans  -    4,04,000  -    1,45,000 

Unsecured considered doubtful

TOTAL  4,04,000  1,45,000 

Note 5

FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

PARTICULARS  As at 31 March 2024  As at 31 March 2023

Non Current  -  -  -  -

TOTAL  -  -  -  -

Current

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Accrued interest on :

 - Bank Deposits  -    -   

 - Intercorporate Deposits  -    -   

 - IT Refund  -    -   

 - Others  76,325  76,325  38,281  38,281 

TOTAL  76,325  38,281 
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Note 6

Other Assets
PARTICULARS  As at 31 March 2024  As at 31 March 2023

Other Non- Current Assets
Advances other than Capital advances
Security Deposit  92,69,153  88,09,197
Others
 - Payment of Taxes (Net of Provisions)  -  -
 - MAT Credit entitlement  5,12,209  5,12,209
 - Balances with Statutory, Government Authorities  27,16,868  32,29,077  28,39,399  33,51,608

TOTAL  1,24,98,231  1,21,60,805
Other Current Assets
Advances other than Capital advances
Advances from Creditors  24,16,090  17,98,246
Others
 - Prepaid expenses

TOTAL  24,16,090  17,98,246

Note 7

INVENTORIES
 Inventories  As at 31 March 2024  As at 31 March 2023

 `  `  `  `
a.	 Raw Materials and components(Valued at Cost or 

Market Price whichever is less)
 1,87,47,353  3,18,46,692

Goods-in transit  -  -
 1,87,47,353  1,87,47,353  3,18,46,692  3,18,46,692

 b.	 Work-in-progress (Valued at Cost or Market Price 
whichever is less)

 3,07,83,215  1,94,53,427

Goods-in transit  -  -
 3,07,83,215  3,07,83,215  1,94,53,427  1,94,53,427

c.	 Finished goods (Valued at Cost or Market Price 
whichever is less)

 6,40,57,729  6,16,83,662

Goods-in transit  -  -
 6,40,57,729  6,40,57,729  6,16,83,662  6,16,83,662

d.	 Stock-in-trade (Valued at Cost or Market Price 
whichever is less)

 -  -

Goods-in transit  -  -
 -  -  -  -

e.	 Stores and spares (Valued at Cost or Market Price 
whichever is less)

 3,96,150  3,96,150

Goods-in transit  -  -
 3,96,150  3,96,150  3,96,150  3,96,150

f.	 Loose Tools (Valued at Cost or Market Price 
whichever is less)

 -  -

Goods-in transit  -  -
 -  -  -  -

g.	 Others (Specify nature)  -  -  -  -
 Total 11,39,84,447 11,33,79,931
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Note 7 a (i) 

Quantitative details in respect of opening, closing stock and sale of finished goods :	

In view of the complexities of the business, the detils provided hereunder could not be verified by us during the course of 
our audit and hence the following information provided is as certified by the management.

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

 Kgs.  Rupees  Kgs.  Rupees

Opening Stock:

N Methyl J Acid  18,364.92  2,02,47,324  20,696.46  2,28,17,847

Phenyl J Acid  6,750.00  68,13,450  12,731.03  1,28,50,702

Di J Acid  4,537.75  58,07,094  6,503.36  82,85,281

Purified Di J Acid  590.80  10,42,171  89.80  1,54,007

Sulpho Tobias Acid  14,857.07  41,59,979  24,537.49  68,70,497

Tobias Acid  6,097.99  15,36,693  36,422.99  91,78,593

Purified Tobias Acid  40,883.24  2,20,76,950  37,551.12  2,02,77,605

 92,081.77  6,16,83,662  1,38,532.25  8,04,34,532

Note 7 a (ii)

Sales: 2023-24 2022-23

 Kgs.  Rupees  Kgs.  Rupees 

N Methyl J Acid  1,35,900.13  11,32,66,558  1,31,336.80  12,63,60,015 

Purified N Methyl J Acid  60,782.25  6,35,15,372  7,154.00  69,75,150 

Phenyl J Acid  81,253.86  6,53,43,757  93,056.53  8,39,56,112 

Di J Acid  30,280.65  3,07,42,223  25,314.05  2,78,15,764 

Purified Di J Acid  907.50  13,12,245  3,015.00  51,25,500 

Sulpho Tobias Acid  -    -    10,890.00  29,94,750 

Tobias Acid  -    -    -    -   

Sulpho Tobias Acid Tarapur Factory  16,367.76  37,47,181  66,468.62  1,66,57,939 

Tobias Acid Tarapur Factory  25.00  5,250  5,000.00  11,25,000 

Purified Tobias Acid Tarapur Factory  1,00,593.52  4,84,32,249  69,525.00  3,52,41,061 

J Acid Urea (IMPORT)  4,769.30  31,51,802  14,646.83  1,16,59,509 

Beta Naphthol (IMPORT)  84,000.00  1,29,12,300  68,000.00  1,19,98,000 

Beta Naphthol (Tarapur IMPORT)  -    -    24,000.00  49,15,800 

 5,14,879.97  34,24,28,937  5,18,406.83  33,48,24,600 
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Note 7 a (iii)

Closing Stock: 2023-24 2022-23
 Kgs.  Rupees  Kgs.  Rupees

N Methyl J Acid  16,982.02  1,87,22,677  18,364.92  2,02,47,324
Phenyl J Acid  7,938.00  80,12,617  6,750.00  68,13,450
Di J Acid  4,786.46  60,97,950  4,537.75  58,07,094
Purified Di J Acid  -  -  590.80  10,42,171
Sulpho Tobias Acid  1,871.18  5,27,673  14,857.07  41,59,979
Tobias Acid  29,150.00  74,33,250  6,097.99  15,36,693
Purified Tobias Acid  41,303.49  2,23,86,492  40,883.24  2,20,76,950
Sulpho Tobias Acid Electric Grade  1,555.09  8,77,071 - -

 1,03,586.24  6,40,57,729  92,081.77  6,16,83,662

Note 7 b (i)
Quantitative details of principal items of raw materials and packing materials consumed:
In view of the complexities of the business, the detils provided hereunder could not be verified by us during the course of 
our audit and hence the following information provided is as certified by the management.	
Raw materials and packing materials 
consumed:

 2023-24   2022-23
 Kgs.  Rupees  Kgs.  Rupees

J Acid Import  2,59,710.00  17,78,58,050  2,23,871.89  15,31,28,373
J Acid Local  1,01,149.85  6,52,16,903  68,038.11  4,35,44,390
Soda Ash  1,61,450.00  54,06,775  1,15,000.00  48,67,280
Sulphuric Acid  4,08,900.00  20,23,930  2,47,450.00  21,40,170
Mono Methyl Amine  4,10,170.00  1,70,06,055  2,76,870.00  1,44,52,642
HCL  3,55,015.00  2,55,144  2,48,210.00  1,41,830
SBS Powder  12,350.00  4,33,515  10,450.00  5,20,580
Formic Acid  6,195.00  3,97,673  3,605.00  2,75,853
Aniline Oil (LOCAL)  27,050.00  41,68,238  32,257.00  55,87,641
Aniline Oil (IMPORT)  9,822.00  16,89,384  6,178.00  10,62,616
C.S.Lye (ASIS)  2,21,270.00  37,80,383  1,66,632.00  45,50,740
Beta Naphthol (IMPORT)  -  -  -  -
Beta Naphthol (LOCAL)  -  -  -  -
Ethylene Di Chloride  17,560.00  8,58,915  12,000.00  9,16,875
Oleum 23%  15,440.00  90,312  1,52,200.00  11,41,730
Tobias Acid (IMPORT)  48,000.00  1,22,13,000  -  -
Tobias Acid (LOCAL)  -  -  -  -
Chloro Sulphonic Acid  -  -  -  -
Liquid Ammonia  -  -  -  -
Anhydrous Ammonia Gas  -  -  -  -
SO2 Sulphur Di Oxide Gas  182.00  72,800  -  -
Others (Including Packing Material)  4,00,236.00  22,78,577  4,11,956.00  18,68,634

 24,54,499.85  29,37,49,653  19,74,718.00  23,41,99,354
Less: Excise set off
Less: Sales Tax set off  -

 29,37,49,653  23,41,99,354
Add : Freight Inward / Clearing & Forwarding  6,75,693  8,23,203

 29,44,25,346  23,50,22,557
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While valueing Principal Raw material under note 14 b (i) Company has valued goods as mentioned below Imported 
goods(@CIF Value)= (Foreign Currency * BL rate ) + custome duty + Bank Charges + Clearing & Forwarding expences + 
Transportation Local goods = Purchased Price + Transportation

Note 7 b (ii)

 2023-24  2022-23

 Kgs.  Rupees  Kgs.  Rupees

Purchase of traded goods:

Dyes  3,100  15,31,000  49,235.00  2,21,65,000

CIF value of Imports:

Raw Material  4,65,045  14,95,38,192  4,60,980.00  16,60,84,096

Note 7 b (iii)

Value of imported and indigenous goods consumed :

 Rupees
2023-24

 Percentage of 
total

 consumption
 2023-24

 Rupees
 2022-23

 Percentage of 
total

 consumption
 2022-23

 Raw materials & packing materials:
 Imported  14,95,38,192 50.91%  16,60,84,096 70.92%
 Indigenous  14,42,11,461 49.09%  6,81,15,258 29.08%

 29,37,49,653 100%  23,41,99,354 100%
 Add : Freight Inward / Clearing
 & Forwarding  -    -   

 29,37,49,653  23,41,99,354 
Stores & Spares:  -    -   
Indigenous  -    -   

 29,37,49,653  23,41,99,354 

Inventory has been provided as security against Bank’s Credit Facility availed.

Note 8

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS	
PARTICULARS  As at 31 March 2024  As at 31 March 2023

Balances with banks on current accounts  1,97,94,852  37,76,976 
- Deposits with original maturity of less than 
three months
Cheques/draft on hand
Cash on hand  2,53,949  2,91,899 

TOTAL  2,00,48,800  40,68,875 
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Note 9

OTHER BANK BALANCES

PARTICULARS  As at 31 March 2024  As at 31 March 2023

Deposits with banks to the extent held as margin money  2,42,18,291  2,62,22,666
TOTAL  2,42,18,291  2,62,22,666

Note 10

CURRENT TAX ASSETS

PARTICULARS  As at 31 March 2024  As at 31 March 2023 

Taxes Paid                     -                      -   
Less : Taxes for the Year                     -                      -   

TOTAL                     -                      -   

Note 11

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2024.

A.     Equity share capital

Authorised Share Capital

Particulars Number of Shares Amount

As at 1 April 2022  1,20,00,000  6,00,00,000 
Changes in Authorised equity share capital during the year
As at 31 March 2023  1,20,00,000  6,00,00,000 
Changes in Authorised equity share capital during the year
As at 31 March 2024  1,20,00,000  6,00,00,000 

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 5 per share. Each holder of equity shares is 
entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees.
In the event of liquidation of the company, the shareholders will be entitled in proportion to the number of equity shares 
held by them to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution to those it was secured.
The shareholders have all other rights as available to equity shareholders as per the provisions of the Companies 
Act,2013, read together with the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Company, as applicable.

Issued Capital

Particulars Number Amount

Equity shares of INR 5 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
At April 1, 2022  91,28,870  4,56,44,350 
Issued during the period  -    -   
At March 31, 2023  91,28,870  4,56,44,350 
Issued during the period  -    -   
At March 31, 2024  91,28,870  4,56,44,350 
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Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company	

 Name of Shareholder  As at 31 March 2024  As at 31 March 2023
 No. of 

Shares held
 % of 

Holding
 No. of 

Shares held
 % of 

Holding
 MITEN S MODY  5,20,320 5.70  5,20,320 5.70
 SUMISH S MODY  9,86,660 10.81  9,86,660 10.81
 VIVID INTERMEDIATES PVT. LTD.  5,68,568 6.23  5,68,568 6.23
 AMISHA MITEN MODY  5,31,396 5.82  5,31,396 5.82
 MEENA S MODY  8,06,178 8.83  8,06,178 8.83
 SUDHIR MODY  7,46,004 8.17  7,46,004 8.17

Aggregate number of equity shares issued as bonus, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought 
back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date - NIL
None of the above shares are reserved for issue under options/contract/commitments for sale of shares or disinvestments.
The Company does not have any holding company.

Note 12

 Other Equity  As at 
31 March 2024

 As at 
31 March 2023

 `  `

 Capital Reserves

 Cash Subsidy

 Opening Balance  25,00,000  25,00,000
 (+) Current Year Transfer  -  -
 (-) Written Back in Current Year  -  -
 Closing Balance  25,00,000  25,00,000

 Securities Premium Account

 Opening Balance  7,14,655  7,14,655
 Add : Securities premium credited on Share issue  -  -
 Less : Premium Utilised for various reasons
 Premium on Redemption of Debentures  -  -
 For Issuing Bonus Shares  -  -
 Closing Balance  7,14,655  7,14,655

 Revaluation Reserve

 Opening Balance  99,48,563  99,48,563
 (+) Current Year Transfer  -  -
 (-) Written Back in Current Year  -  -
 Closing Balance  99,48,563  99,48,563
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 c. Surplus
 Opening balance  8,83,51,580  9,02,33,117
 (+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the current year  18,25,340  -18,81,537
 (+) Reduction in Proposed Dividend F.Y. 18-19  -  -
 (-) Proposed Dividends  -  -
 (-) Interim Dividends  -
 (-) Transfer to Reserves  -  -
 (-) Difference in Proposed Dividend and Final Dividend of earlier years  -  -
 (-) Difference in interim dividend of FY 2021-202  -  -
 (-) Dividend Paid of FY 2020-2021  -  -
 Closing Balance  9,01,76,920  8,83,51,580

 Total  10,33,40,138  10,15,14,798

ii. Components of Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars  As at 
31 March 2024

 As at 
31 March 2023

Revaluation Reserve                    -                  -
Debt Instruments through OCI                    -                  -
Equity Instruments through OCI                    -                  -
Effective portion of Cash Flow Hedges                    -                  -
Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of a foreign 
operation

                   -                  -

Discontinued Operations                    -                  -
Other items of Other Comprehensive Income                    -                  -

Equity Instruments through OCI

Particulars  As at 
31 March 2024

 As at 
31 March 2023

Opening balance                    -                  -
Add/(Less):                    -                  -
Fair value changes recognised in OCI                    -                  -

Closing balance                    -                  -

Equity Share Capital
Particulars Balance at the 

Beginning  
of the year

Changes in  
Equity share capital 

during the year

Balance  
at the  

end of the year
March 31, 2024
Numbers  91,28,870  -    91,28,870 
Amount  4,56,44,350  -    4,56,44,350 
March 31, 2023
Numbers  91,28,870  -    91,28,870 
Amount  4,56,44,350  -    4,56,44,350 
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Other Equity

Particulars Share 
Application 

money 
pending 

allotment

Equity 
Component 

of 
Compound 

financial 
instruments

Reserves and Surplus Equity 
Instruments 

through 
OCI

Total

Capital 
Reserve 
- Cash 

Subsidy

Securities 
Premium 
Reserve

Revaluation 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

As at April 1, 2023  -  -  25,00,000  7,14,655  99,48,563 8,83,51,580 10,15,14,798
Profit for the period  -  -  18,25,340  -  18,25,340
(+) Reduction in Proposed 
Dividend

 -

Other comprehensive 
income

 -  -

Total comprehensive 
income for the year

 -  -  25,00,000  7,14,655  99,48,563  9,01,76,920  - 10,33,40,138

Depreciation transfer 
for Property, plant and 
equipment

 -

Transfer to debenture 
redemption reserve

 -

Issue of equity shares  -
Transaction costs  -
Issue of optionally 
convertible bonds (net of 
deferred tax)

 -

Exercise of share options  -
Share based payments  -
Cash dividends - Interim 
Dividend (incl DDT)

 -

Non cash distribution of 
owners

 -

Difference in interim 
dividend
As at March 31, 2024  -  -  25,00,000  7,14,655  99,48,563  9,01,76,919  - 10,33,40,138

Note 13

Borrowings
Particulars  As at 

31 March 2024
 As at 

31 March 2023
 Non Current Borrowings
 Secured
 From Banks
 Vehicle Loans from Banks  9,12,422  11,99,549

 (A)  9,12,422  11,99,549
 Current Maturity of Non Current Borrowings
 From Banks
 Vehicle Loans from Banks  3,09,879  2,87,127

 (B)  3,09,879  2,87,127

 Total (A)-(B)  6,02,543  9,12,422
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Non Current Borrowings  As at  
31 March 2024 

 As at  
31 March 2023 

Secured
       Vehicle Loans from Banks
       (Secured against hypothecation of Motor vehicles )

 9,12,422  11,99,549 

Non Current Borrowings  9,12,422  11,99,549 
Less: Current maturity  3,09,879  2,87,127 
Non Current Borrowings (as per Balance sheet)  6,02,543  9,12,422 

Current Borrowings
Particulars  As at  

31 March 2024 
 As at  

31 March 2023 
Secured
Current Maturity of Non Current Borrowings
Vehicle Loans from Banks  
(Secured against hypothecation of Motor vehicles )

 3,09,879  2,87,127 

Current Maturity of Non Current Borrowings A  3,09,879  2,87,127 
Other Secured Loans
Bank Current Account - Packing credit Loan  3,85,31,758  2,08,85,197 
(Secured against DP Notes,Lodgment of LC's/Confirmed Export 
Orders, Export Trust Receipts, Debtors, Inventory and Factory 
Building)

B  3,85,31,758  2,08,85,197 
Total Current Borrowings A+B  3,88,41,637  2,11,72,324 

Net debt Reconciliation
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods presented

Particulars  As at 
31 March 2024

 As at 
31 March 2023

Current Borrowings  3,88,41,637  2,11,72,323
Non-current Borrowings  6,02,543  9,12,422
Net Debt  3,94,44,180  2,20,84,745

Note 14

Trade Payables

Particulars  As at  
31 March 2024  

 As at  
31 March 2023  

Non Current 
Trade Payables to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises                          -                            -   
Trade Payables to Others                          -                            -   

Total                          -                            -   
Current
Trade Payables to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises                          -                            -   
Trade Payables to Others  9,20,32,708  10,14,40,504 

Total  9,20,32,708  10,14,40,504 
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Balances of Trade Payables as on 31/03/2024 are recorded at realisable value as certified by Management. The 
Management has not been able to produce confirmations of balances due to Balances Payable to the Creditors.	
Management has not able to produce list Trade payables of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Note 15

Other Financial Liability
Particulars  As at 

31 March 2024
 As at 

31 March 2023
 Non Current
(i) Financial Liabilities at amortised cost
Deposits Payables (Rent)  8,53,824  9,32,500
Accrued compensation to employees  -  -
Payable for acquisition of business - Contingent Consideration  -  -

TOTAL  8,53,824  9,32,500
Current
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost
Current maturities of long term Loan from bank  -  -
Security Deposits From Customers  -  -
Unpaid dividends  -  -

TOTAL                          -                          -

Note 16
Provisions

Particulars   As at  
31 March 2024

  As at  
31 March 2023

Non Current
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity  16,83,201  13,52,198 
Leave encashment  -    -   
Service/Maintenance warranties  -    -   
Restructuring costs  -    -   
Decommisioning Liability  -    -   
Onerous Operating lease  -    -   
Contingent Liability  -    -   
Volume discounts and returns  -    -   
Other provision  -    -   

Total  16,83,201  13,52,198 
 Current
Provision for employee benefits  -  -
Gratuity  -  -
Leave encashment  -  -
Service/Maintenance warranties  -  -
Restructuring costs  -  -
Decommisioning Liability  -  -
Onerous Operating lease  -  -
Contingent Liability  -  -
Volume discounts and returns  -  -
Other provision  -  -

Total  -  -
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Note 17
Deferred Tax

 Particulars  As at  
31 March 2024

 As at  
31 March 2023

Deferred tax relates to the following:
Temporary difference in the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment-
till date  47,27,500  61,37,415 

Revaluation of Land and buildings to fair value  -    -   
Revaluation of FVTPL/FVTOCI investments to fair value  -    -   
Revaluation of FVTOCI hedge loan to fair value  -    -   
Post employment medical benefits  -    -   
Provision for employee benefits  -75,733  -3,72,564 
Provision for dobutful debt  -    -   
Provision for loss on financial assets  -    -   
MAT Credit Entitlement  -    -   
Losses available for offsetting against future taxable income  -    -   
Impairment on FVTOCI debt instruments  -    -   
Convertible Preference shares  -    -   
Losses available for offsetting against future taxable income  -    -   
Others (Specify)  -    -   

 46,51,767  57,64,851 
Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) recognised at the beginning of the year  57,64,851  47,73,009 
Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) to be recognised for the year  -11,13,084  9,91,842 

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets 
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same 
tax authority.
Considering the probability of availability of future taxable profits in the period in which tax losses expire, deferred tax 
assets have not been recognised in respect of unabsorbed depreciation, business losses and long term capital losses 
carried forward by the Company.
Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by income tax rate for 31st March 2024 and 31st 
March 2023

 Particulars  As at 
31 March 2024

 As at 
31 March 2023

Accounting profit before income tax  20,47,862  -2,92,818
Enacted tax rate in India  25.17  26.00
Income tax on accounting profits  5,15,406  -76,133
Tax effect on
Depreciation  28,12,901  22,13,048
Expenditure allowable on payment basis and other disallowances  -  -
Provision for Dobutful Debt  -  -
Donation  -  -
Income considered separately  -  -
Dividend income  -  -
Gratuity Provision  3,31,003  1,46,567
Carried forward losses adjusted  -  -
Others  1,14,998  2,28,884
Taxable Income  53,06,764  22,95,681 
Effective Tax  13,35,606  5,96,877 
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Changes in tax rate		

Where the applicable tax rate changed during the year, the adjustments to the deferred tax balances appear as another 
reconciling item in the reconciliation of accounting profit multiplied by tax rate to income tax expense. The associated 
explanations could be along the following lines:			 

The impact of the change in tax rate has been recognised in tax expense in profit or loss, except to the extent that 
it relates to items previously recognised outside profit or loss.

Note 18

Other Non Current Labilities

Particulars As at  
31 March 2024 

 As at  
31 March 2023

TOTAL

Note 19

Other Current Labilities 

Particulars  As at  
31 March 2024

 As at  
31 March 2023

Revenue Received in advances  -    -   

Advance received from Customers  -   

Other Advances  -    -   

Government Grants  -    -   

Others  -    -   

Statutory Liabilities  5,67,582  5,59,380 

Taxes for Earlier Years  1,40,69,041  5,31,43,462 

Less: Taxes Paid (For Earlier years)  -1,46,65,525  -5,44,43,675 

Deferred Rent  -    -   

Others  1,80,410  2,06,750 

TOTAL  1,51,508  -5,34,083 

Note 17

Current Tax Liabilities

Particulars  As at  
31 March 2024

 As at  
31 March 2023

Tax for the Year  13,35,605  5,96,877 

Less : Taxes Paid  -3,01,267  -3,56,933 

TOTAL  10,34,338  2,39,944 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Note 20

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Particulars  For the year ended 

31 March 2024
 For the year ended 

31 March 2023
Sale of products

Export Sales  11,19,96,029  15,57,29,923
Domestic Sales  23,21,07,808  34,41,03,837  20,39,71,871  35,97,01,794
Other Operating Income

Job Work Labour Received  -  4,60,237
Discount Received  -  -
Sale of DEPB License - Tarapur  -  -
Duty Draw Back Incentive  51,705  6,22,146
Interest Recd on L C Margin  13,39,405  13,91,110  12,11,816  22,94,199

TOTAL  34,54,94,947  36,19,95,993

Note 21

OTHER INCOME 
Particulars  For the year ended 

31 March 2024
 For the year ended 

31 March 2023
Interest Recd.on GSPC Co Ltd  1,93,281  42,534 
Interest on Income Tax Refund  -    1,93,281  -    42,534 
Profit on sale of Asset  -    -   
Rent  30,11,782  33,10,904 
Other Income  9,75,509 

TOTAL  32,05,063  43,28,947 

Note 22

COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Particulars  For the year ended 
31 March 2024

 For the year ended 
31 March 2023

As at Beginning of the year  3,18,46,692  1,82,38,650 
Add: Purchases 
Import Purchase  14,95,38,192  16,60,84,096 
OGS Purchase  1,78,07,945  2,00,48,101 
Purchase  8,27,73,094  6,84,27,971 
Vat Reduction  3,10,764  4,65,100 
Purchase - Job Work Labour  46,60,096  25,50,90,091  65,02,913  26,15,28,181 
Less : As at end of the year  -1,87,47,353  -3,18,46,692 

TOTAL  26,81,89,430  24,79,20,139 
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Note 23

PURCHASES OF OTHER TRADABLE ITEMS

Particulars  For the year ended  
31 March 2024

 For the year ended  
31 March 2023

Purchase Trading Goods  15,31,000  2,21,65,000 
TOTAL  15,31,000  2,21,65,000 

Note 24				  

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND OTHER TRADEABLE ITEMS

Particulars  For the year ended 
31 March 2024

 For the year ended 
31 March 2023

Inventories as at the beginning of the year
Work in Progress  1,94,53,427  82,82,099
Finished Goods  6,16,83,662  8,04,34,532
Stores & Spares  3,96,150  8,15,33,239  3,96,150  8,91,12,781
Less : Inventories as at the end of the year
Work in Progress  3,07,83,215  1,94,53,427
Finished Goods  6,40,57,729  6,16,83,662
Stores & Spares  3,96,150  9,52,37,094  3,96,150  8,15,33,239

TOTAL  -1,37,03,855  75,79,542

Note 25

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Particulars  For the year ended
31 March 2024

 For the year ended
31 March 2023

Salary Expenses  1,57,33,167  1,62,00,230
Contirbution to Provident Fund(Employer)  10,63,900  10,55,021
Contirbution to ESIC  81,076  98,075
Staff welfare  1,46,554  1,45,549
Other Expenses  5,97,883  1,76,22,580  1,91,569  1,76,90,444
Directors Sitting Fees  1,20,000  1,20,000
Directors Remuneration  64,20,000  65,40,000  69,90,000  71,10,000
TOTAL  2,41,62,580  2,48,00,444

Note 26

FINANCE COST

Particulars  For the year ended 31 
March 2024

 For the year ended 31 
March 2023

Interest expense  3,06,027  1,67,079 
Other borrowing costs  56,63,668  41,35,721 
Applicable net gain/loss on foreign currency 
transactions and translation

 -15,85,247  -11,83,571 

TOTAL  43,84,448  31,19,230 
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Note 27	

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE	

Particulars  For the year ended 31 
March 2024

 For the year ended 31 
March 2023

Depreciation  78,14,102  78,10,357 
Amortization expense  -    -   

TOTAL  78,14,102  78,10,357 

Note 28

OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars  For the year ended 31 
March 2024

 For the year ended 31 
March 2023

Direct Expenses
Import Expenses  75,48,847  86,19,881 
Pollution Board  Exp  -    75,000 
Electricity Expense  15,95,895  15,04,063 
Testing & Analysis Charges  1,32,700  89,795 
Transportation Charges  24,62,049  28,27,370 
Job Work Charges for Production  1,32,78,046  1,29,91,200 
Water Exps  3,87,207  2,82,038 
Waste Disposal charges  7,91,175  7,58,838 
Other Expenses  2,01,496  2,63,97,415  3,54,968  2,75,03,153 
Indirect Expenses
Repairs & Maintenance  34,01,665  33,64,094 
Advertisement Expenses  83,966  66,230 
Export Expenses  6,23,727  2,42,475 
Commission on Sale  55,08,333  38,94,543 
Insurance Exp  5,83,184  6,49,164 
Payment to Statutory Auditor {Note 27a}  3,70,000  3,50,000 
Rent Paid  69,00,000  71,00,000 
Legal & Professional Charges  20,25,892  13,02,548 
Travelling Exp  20,19,966  7,62,874 
Communication Exp  1,29,232  1,26,686 
Other Expenses  59,08,655  78,61,281 
Stock Audit Fees  14,000  2,75,68,620  -    2,57,19,894 

TOTAL  5,39,66,035  5,32,23,047 

Particulars  For the year ended 31 
March 2024

 For the year ended 31 
March 2023

Payment to Statutory Auditor
For Statutory Audit  3,70,000  3,50,000 
For Tax Audit  -    -   
For Other Services  -    3,70,000  -    3,50,000 

TOTAL  3,70,000  3,50,000 
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Note 29

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Particulars  For the year ended 31 
March 2024

 For the year ended 31 
March 2023

Prior Period Expenses  3,08,408  -   
Penalty paid to Pollution Board  -    -   

TOTAL  3,08,408  -   

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Particulars  For the year ended 31 
March 2024

 For the year ended 31 
March 2023

(a) Basic and Diluted earnings per share
From continuing operations attributable to the equity 
holders of the company

 0.20  1.58 

From discontinuing operations attributable to the equity 
holders of the company

 -  -

Total basic earnings per share attributable to the equity 
holders of the company

 0.20  1.58 

(b) Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating 
earnings per share
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company 
used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share

 18,25,340  -18,81,537 

(c) Weighted average number of shares used as the 
denominator
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the 
denominator in calculating basic and diluted earnings 
per share

 91,28,870  91,28,870 

30 Significant Accounting Policies:

i. Basis of Accounting:
The financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention on an accrual basis.

ii. Inventories
Inventories are valued as under:
Raw Material and Packing Material :  At cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower
Work-In-Process :  At cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower
Finished goods :  At cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower
Stores & spares :  At cost
By products/Scrap :  At Net Realisable Value
Fuel :  At cost
Cost of Raw Material and Packing Material is determined on First in First out basis. 
Cost of Finished goods and work-in-process include costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition.
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iii. Fixed Assets and Depreciation :
Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation has been provided for by the straight line method at the rates specified in revised Schedule II of the 
Companies Act, 2013.
Depreciation on additions during the year is charged on pro rata basis.
The amortization of the value of the Leasehold Premises has not been provided for. The Company does not not 
follow the procedure of amortizing its leasehold assets over the period of the lease.
Captital Subsidy has been reduced from the Cost of the Plant & Machinery. Hence the depreciation on addition to 
Fixed Assets made during the year has been calculated at the cost of new assets less the subsidy received.

iv. Revenue Recognition :
Sales are recognised when the goods are invoiced or despatched to the customers and are recorded exclusive of 
excise duty and net of trade discount and sales tax.
Export sales are recognised on the date of Shipping bill.
Duty Drawback is accounted in the year in which it is received.
Interest Income has been recognised on the basis of the amount received from the Banks

v. Long Term investments are valued at cost.
vi. Foreign currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. All 
foreign currency  assets and liabilities (except those towards fixed assets) are translated at year end exchange rate 
and related exchange gain/loss is recognised in Profit and Loss Account.
Adjustmenmt in respect of liabilities incurred for acquisition of fixed assets are adjusted in the carrying amount of 
fixed assets.

II) The following are the observations during the course of Audit under review and brought to the notice of the 
members of the Company :-

1) Due to the complexities of business the value of the Inventory has been considered as has been verified, valued 
and certified by the Management. 

2) Balances of Sundry Debtors and Sundry Creditors as on 31/03/2024 are recorded at realisable value. The 
Management has been able to produce some confirmations of balances due from Debtors as well as the Balances 
Payable to the Creditors. However the value of these Debtors and Creditors for the Balance Sheet purpose has 
been take as certified by the Management.

3)  Expenditure in foreign currency  Rupees  Rupees
 2023-24  2022-23

 a. Travelling expenses  18,28,328  5,40,129 
 b. Commission paid/payable  1,47,424  9,07,207 

 Rupees  Rupees
4)  Earnings in foreign exchange :  2023-24  2022-23

 C.I.F. value of exports  11,19,96,029  15,57,29,923 
 Percentage to Total Turnover 32.55% 43.29%

CIF Value of Exports have been reported based on the working submitted by the management and it has been explained 
that wherever the Insurance and Freight has been recovered from the customers, the same has been included in the value 
shown above and in absence of the same, the Insurance & Freight has been claimed as expenditure.

 5) Particulars of Licensed Capacity, Installed Capacity and Actual Pro-
duction :

 2023-24  2022-23

a. Installed Capacity:
 Dye Intermediates equivalent  14,00,000 14,00,000
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Installed capacity is as certified by the Management and not verified by the auditors. It denotes estimated production of 
a product, if the entire plant & machinery is operated on triple shift basis during the year and is exclusively utilised for its 
production. However, the plant and machinery is common for  the production of various dye-intermediates and hence the 
installed capacity may vary depending upon the product mix adopted by the company.	

6)        Related Party Transactions :

I Names of Related Parties and nature of relationship.
A. Associates
1 Vivid Intermediates Private Limited
2 M/s. Sumichem Corporation
B. Enterprises over which Key Management Persons Have significant influence and Enterprises having Key

Management Person in common.

1 Vivid Chemical (FIRM)
C. Key Management Persons and Relatives
1 Mr. Sudhir Mody CFO of the Company and Father of Directors Mr. Sumish Mody & Mr. Miten Mody 

(Upto 01.08.2023)
2 Mr. Sumiran Mody CFO of the Company (Appointed as on 01.08.2023)
3 Mr. Sumish Sudhir Mody Managing Director
4 Mr. Miten Sudhir Mody Director
5 Mrs. Meena Sumish Mody Director & Wife of Mr. Sumish Mody
6 Mrs. Amisha Miten Mody Wife of Director - Mr. Miten Mody
7 Mr. Nainesh S Desai Director
8 Mr. Mahesh Shivram Gharat Director
9 Mr. Nitin Anant Zujam Director
10 Mrs. Nilam Pradeep Bajoria CS of the Company

II	 Transactions with related Parties

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Amount Percentage 
of Director 

Remuneration 
as per section 

197 od the 
companies Act

1 Sumish Mody
Travelling Exp  1,91,638
Director remuneration  49,20,000 58.10%
Director Sitting Fees  20,000

2 Sudhir Mody
Salary  6,40,000

3 VIVID Chemicals
Rent Paid  69,00,000

4 VIVID Intermediates Pvt. Ltd
Job Work Charges Paid  1,32,78,046
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5 Meena S Mody

Director Sitting Fees  20,000
6 Miten Mody

Director remuneration  1,500,000 17.71%
Director Sitting Fees  20,000

7 Nainesh Desai

Director Sitting Fees  20,000
8 Amisha Miten Mody

Salary  12,00,000
9 Mahesh S Gharat

Director Sitting Fees  20,000
10 Nitin A Zujam

Director Sitting Fees  20,000
 2,87,49,684 75.82%

7) Details of payments to Key Management Personnel:

Particulars 2024
 Amount ( Rs.)

2023
 Amount ( Rs.)

Director Remuneration  64,20,000  69,90,000 
Total  64,20,000  69,90,000 

Computation of Net Profit in accordance with Section 197 and  Section 198 of the companies Act, 2013		

Particulars Year Ended
31st March 2024

A Net Profit as per Profit and Loss Account 18,25,340
Add : Provision for Income tax (Net of MAT Credit) 13,35,605
Provision for Deferred Tax -11,13,084
Section 198 of the companies Act, 2013 20,47,862

Add : Managerial Remuneration 64,20,000
Depreciation as per accounts 78,14,102
Provision for bad and doubtful debts
Less : Depreciation as per Section 350 of the Companies Act, 1956 78,14,102
Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 84,67,862

B Details of Managerial Remuneration under Section 198 of the Companies Act, 1956
Salaries, Remuneration and Allowances 64,20,000
Total 64,20,000

Total Director Remuneration paid by the Company 75.82%
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8)	 Segment Reporting : 

1	 Primary Segment Information 

Geographical Segments 	 (Rs. In lakhs)

 Sr. 
No

 Particulars  Current year 
(2023-24)

 Previous year 
(2022-23)

1 SEGMENT REVENUE
Local  2,321.08  2,062.66 
Export  1,119.96  1,557.30 
Other Income  45.96  43.29 
TOTAL  3,487.00  3,663.25 

2 SEGMENT RESULTS (Profit before Interest & Tax)
Local  2,265.99  2,023.72 
Export  1,096.99  1,521.16 
Total Segment Result  3,362.98  3,544.87 
Less: Finance Cost 43.84  31.19 
Less: Unallocable Expense/ (Income)  3,298.66  3,516.61 
Profit Before Tax  20.48  -2.93 
 Less: Prov. For Tax  13.36  5.97 
 Less: Deffered Tax  -11.13  9.92 
 Profit After Tax  18.25  -18.82 

4  SEGMENT CAPITAL EMPLOYED 
Local  991.70  828.61 
Export  478.51  625.59 
Others  19.64  17.39 
TOTAL  1,489.84  1,471.59 

a)	 In Segment Reporting of the Company the Unallocable Expenses & Capital Employed figure of each 
segment is calculated on the proportion of Export Sales to Total Sales for the corresponding period.

 2 	 Secondary segment:

Since company deals in one line of product only ie. Chemicals, it does not satisfy the criteria of reportable 
Secondary Segments; hence the Secondary Segment is not reported.

9) 	 Current Tax :

       	 Provision for Tax has been made on the basis of the Income Tax Act 1961.  

10) 	 Earning Per Share :

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
a)  Profit Before Distribution of Dividend  18,25,340  -18,81,537 
     No. of Shares  91,28,870  91,28,870 
      EPS Before Dividend  0.20  -0.21 
b)  Profit After Distribution of Dividend  18,25,340  -18,81,537 

No. of Shares  91,28,870  91,28,870 
EPS After Dividend  0.20  -0.21 
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11) 	 Deferred Tax Adjustment :						    
	 For the company, the deferred tax adjustment as required by AS-22 consists only on account of Difference in the 

Rate of Depreciation under the Income Tax Act and the Companies Act. The DTA/DTL of the earlier years was 
calculated @ of the Rate of Tax applicable in that particular year and for the current year @ Rate of Tax applicable 
for the year under consideration. Due to the change in the Rate of Tax in the year under consideration, the Opening 
balance of DTA/DTL has been revised accordingly.							     

	 The Profit & Loss Account has been debited with the Deffered Tax Liability of Rs. 11,13,084/-
12)  	 In accordance with the requirement for disclosure of amounts due to SSI units, the company has not compiled the 

list of its sundry creditors who satisfy this criteria.
	 Subject to this, the information relating to payment overdue to SSI units cannot be computed.
13)	 Previous years figures have been regrouped wherever necessary in order to confirm to current years presentation.
14) 	 Statement of policy Account Value Showing Various Components Under The Policy for the  period : 1st April 2023 to 

31st March 2024

Particulars Amount

A.Opening Balance of PAV(*) at the beginning  9,02,390 
B.Fund Converted from Old scheme  -   
C.Premium Received During the Period  1,00,000 
D.Total Claim Paid For the Period  4,64,473 
E.Total Equitable/Transfer in For the Period  -   
F.Total Equitable transfer out For the Period  -   
G.Total Mortality Charges (MOC) Deducted For the Period  13,864 
H.Total Pol Admin Charges (PAC) Deducted For the Period  475 
I.Total correction add of fund  For prev. quarter  -   
J.Total correction ded of fund  For prev. quarters  -   
K.Total Fund Management Charges(FMC) Ded For the Period  3,499 
L.Service Tax On MOC+PAC+FMC For the Period  3,211 
M.Education Cess + Higher Edu Cess on Service Tax  -   
N.Interest Amount Credited (MFR) For the Period  3,501 
O.Interest Amount Credited (AIR) For the Period  46,357 
P.Residual Interest Credited For the Period  -   
Closing Balance of PAV (A+B+C-D+E-F-G-H+I-J-K-L-M+N+O+P)  5,66,725 

A.	 Opening Balance  Details

Quarter Ending Opening 
Balance

Int on MFR Int on AIR

30-06-2023  9,02,389.67  1,122.79  14,858.68 
30-09-2023  6,50,191.00  817.89  10,684.13 
31-12-2023  6,56,428.00  825.74  10,959.00 
31-03-2024  6,62,938.00  824.86  11,057.46 
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C.	 Details of Premium Adjusted During The Period

Receipt Date Premium Int on MFR Int on AIR

30-03-2024  1,00,000.00  1.37  18.18 

D. 	 Details of Claimed booked during the year 

 Payment Date  Claim Amount  Int on MFR  Int on AIR

26-06-2023  2,62,447  14.35  188 
07-03-2024  2,02,026  66.26  883 

15) 	 An Environment Compensation Order, asking the Company to Pay Rs.60,98,400 was levied on the company by the 
Maharashtra Pollution Control Board (MPCB) as per the ‘Polluter Pays’ Principle. The company has preferred an 
appeal before the Supreme Court against the said Order where in, the Supreme Court has directed the Company 
to deposit Rs.18,30,000 (30% of the Compensation Amount) with the The United India Insurance Company as a 
Refundable Deposit and the rest is kept in abeyance till the proceedings are completed. As informed to us, this 
Deposit shall be Refundable back to the Company if the Order of the Supreme Court is decided in favour of the 
Company and Dismissing the Order of MPCB.  The amount of Rs.60,98,400/- is however shown as a ‘Contingent 
Liability’ for FY 2023-24 till the outcome of this Appeal.

UDIN: 24039707BKARFH5075
For K.M.Kapadia and Associates
Chartered Accountants

Vivid Global Industries Limited

CA Kamlesh Kapadia
Mem. No.: 039707

Sd/-
Sumish Sudhir Mody 
Managing Director 
(DIN:00318652)

Sd/-
Meena Sumish Mody
Director 
(DIN:07994050)

Sd/-
Sumiran Sudhir Mody 
CFO 

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17th May 2024

Sd/-
Miten Sudhir Mody
Whole - time Director
(DIN:02422219)

Sd/-  
Neelam Pradeep Bajoria 
Company Secretary

Note 31 		
 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)  As at 

31 March 2024
 As at 

31 March 2023
 (i)  Contingent Liabilities
     	 The company is facing court cases With Central Excise department in respect   

of Modvat credit claimed for F.Y. 1994-95 The company has preferred an appeal 
against the said order and is confident of succeeding in the said appeal.

 64,000  64,000 

       (The liability disclosed above is net of predeposit of Rs. 50,000)
      Maharashtra Pollution Control Board has levied penalty as per 'Polluters Pays' 

Principle. The company has preferred an appeal before the Supreme court.
 60,98,400  60,98,400 

        (The liability disclosed above is inclusive of the deposit made of Rs. 18,30,000)
       Other  3,79,760  3,79,760 
       Guarantee Given  28,69,675  28,69,675 

 94,11,835  94,11,835 
 (ii) Commitments  -    -   

 -    -   
 94,11,835  94,11,835 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Note 32
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
	 The Company’s activity exposes it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. Company’s overall risk management 

focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial 
performance of the company. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the 
company manages the risk.		  			 

(A) 	 Credit risk
     	 Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligations leading to a financial loss. Credit risk arises 

from cash and cash equivalents, financial assets carried at amortised cost and deposits with banks and financial 
institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers including outstanding receivables.
i.	 Credit risk management
 	 Credit risk has always been managed by the company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and 

continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the company grants credit terms in the 
normal course of business.

 	 The company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been 
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether 
there is a significant increase in credit risk the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the 
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available 
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.

	 In general, it is presumed that credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition if the payments are 
more than 30 days past due.

	 A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments of when they fall 
due. This definition of default is determined by considering the business environment in which entity operates 
and other macro-economic factors.

ii. 	 Provision for expected credit losses
	 The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of loss allowance on Trade receivables.
	 As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on 

portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over 
the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting 
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are 
analyzed.

iii. 	 Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade receivables

Particulars  Amount
Loss allowance on April 1, 2023 -
Changes in loss allowance -
Loss allowance on March 31, 2024 -

(B) 	 Liquidity risk
	 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The 

Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to 
meet its liabilities when due. The Company consistently generated sufficient cash flows from operations to meet its 
financial obligations. Also, the Company has unutilized credit limits with banks.

	 Management monitors rolling forecasts of the company’s liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrowing 
facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. In addition, the company’s liquidity 
management policy involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet 
these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements



37th Annual Report 2023-24

80

	 Maturities of financial liabilities

	 The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest 
date on which the Company can be required to pay. In the table below, borrowings includes both interest and 
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest rates are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from 
interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period.					   

Contractual maturities of financial 
liabilities

Contractual cash flows

Particulars  Carrying 
Amount

 Total  Less than 1 
year

 1 to 5 years More than 
5 years

March 31, 2024
Borrowings  3,94,44,180  3,94,44,180  3,88,41,637  6,02,543 
Trade payables  9,20,32,708  9,20,32,708  9,20,32,708  -   
Other financial liabilities  8,53,824  8,53,824  -    8,53,824 
Total financial liabilities 13,23,30,713  13,23,30,713  13,08,74,346  14,56,367  -   
March 31, 2023
Borrowings  2,20,84,745  2,20,84,745  2,11,72,323  9,12,422 
Trade payables 10,14,40,503  10,14,40,503  10,14,40,503  -   
Other financial liabilities  9,32,500  9,32,500  -    9,32,500 
Total financial liabilities 12,44,57,747  12,44,57,747  12,26,12,825  18,44,922  -   

(C) 	 Market risk

	 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of change 
in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk 
such as commodity risk.					   

(i) 	 Foreign currency risk					   

Foreign currency risk is the risk of impact related to fair value or future cash flows of an exposure in foreign 
currency, which fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of 
changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the import of goods.

The Company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and follows 
established risk management policies and standard operating procedures to mitigate the risks.

(a)	 The company exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR lakhs, 
are as follows

Particulars Amount USD
March 31, 2024
Trade Receivable  2,88,86,954  3,46,437.80 
Trade Payable  -7,37,43,808  -8,84,400.72 
Net exposure to foreign currency risk  -4,48,56,854  -5,37,962.9 
March 31, 2023
Trade Receivable  1,41,16,135  1,71,911.51 
Trade Payable  -7,98,77,307  -9,72,775.33 
Net exposure to foreign currency risk  -6,57,61,171  -8,00,864 
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(b) 	 Foreign currency sensitivity

1% increase or decrease in foreign exchange rates will have the following impact on profit before tax:
Particulars  31st March 2024  31st March 2023

1% Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease

USD  -5,380  5,380  -8,009  8,009
INR  -4,48,569  4,48,569  -6,57,612  6,57,612

(ii)	 Interest rate risk

	 The Company primarily borrows funds under fixed interest rate arrangements with banks and financial 
institutions and therefore the Company is not exposed to interest rate risk.

(iii) 	 Price risk

	 The Company is not significantly exposed to changes in the prices of commodities/equity instruments.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Note 33	

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

i. 	 Financial Instruments by Category
Particulars  Carrying Amount  Fair Value

 March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Amortised cost
Trade Receivables  6,78,27,231  6,62,91,130  6,78,27,231  6,62,91,130 
Loans  4,04,000  1,45,000  4,04,000  1,45,000 
Cash and Cash Equivalents  2,00,48,800  40,68,875  2,00,48,800  40,68,875 
Other Bank Balances  2,42,18,291  2,62,22,666  2,42,18,291  2,62,22,666 
Other Financial Assets  76,325  38,281  76,325  38,281 
FVTOCI
Investment in Unquoted Equity 
Instruments

 4,07,800  4,07,800  4,07,800  4,07,800 

TOTAL  11,29,82,448  9,71,73,753  11,29,82,448  9,71,73,753 
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Amortised cost
Borrowings  3,94,44,180  2,20,84,745  3,94,44,180  2,20,84,745 
Trade Payables  9,20,32,708  10,14,40,503  9,20,32,708  10,14,40,503 
Other financial liabilities  8,53,824  9,32,500  8,53,824  9,32,500 
FVTPL
Contingent Consideration  94,11,835  94,11,835  94,11,835  94,11,835 

TOTAL  14,17,42,548  13,38,69,582  14,17,42,548  13,38,69,582 
	 The management assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, trade payables, 

and other current financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term 
maturities of these instruments.
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	 The fair values for loans and other non current financial assets were calculated based on cash flows discounted 
using a current lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the Fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion 
of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk.

	 The fair values of non current borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using  a current borrowing rate. They 
are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs, including own 
credit risk.

ii. 	 Fair Value Hierarchy

	 This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments 
that are recognised and measure at fair value. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in 
determining fair value, the company has classified its financial instruments into three levels prescribed under the 
accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table:

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurement:	

Particulars March 31, 2024 Total March 31, 2023 Total

Fair value measurement using Fair value measurement using

Quoted 
prices 

in active 
markets
(Level 1)

Significant 
Observable 

Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs
(Level 3)

Quoted 
prices 

in active 
markets
(Level 1)

Significant 
Observable 

Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs
(Level 3)

Financial Assets

Financial Investments 
at FVTOCI

Unquoted equity shares  4,07,800  4,07,800  4,07,800  4,07,800 

Total Financial Assets  4,07,800  4,07,800  4,07,800  4,07,800 

Financial Liabilities

Contingent 
consideration

 65,42,160  65,42,160  65,42,160  65,42,160 

Financial guarantee  28,69,675  28,69,675  28,69,675  28,69,675 

Total Financial 
Liabilities

 -    -    94,11,835  94,11,835  -    -    94,11,835  94,11,835 

	 Level 1 - Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.  



VIVID GLOBAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

83

	 Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation 
techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific 
estimates.

	 Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the instrument is included 
in level 3.				  

iii. 	 Valuation technique used to determine fair value

	 Specific Valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

 - 	 the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

 - 	 the use of Breakup value/net asset value for unquoted equity instruments

 - 	 the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis

iv. 	 Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

	 The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorised within Level 3 of the fair value 
hierarchy together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024 are shown as 
below:								      

Particulars Valuation technique

Unlisted equity securities Net Assets / Breakup value method

v. 	 Valuation processes	 							     

	 The finance department of the company includes a team that performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities 
required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values. This team reports directly to the chief financial 
officer (CFO) and the audit committee. Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the CFO, 
audit committee and the valuation team regularly.							     

vi. 	 Reconciliation of fair value measurement of financial assets classified as FVTOCI(Level 3):	 	

Particulars Unquoted equity 
shares

As at April 1, 2022  4,07,800.00 

Remeasurement recognised in OCI  -   
As at March 31, 2023  4,07,800.00 

Remeasurement recognised in OCI  -   
As at March 31, 2024  4,07,800.00 



37th Annual Report 2023-24

84

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Note 34	

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT	

For the purpose of the company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all 
other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital 
management is to maximise the shareholder value.						    

Particulars  March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

Borrowings  3,94,44,180  2,20,84,745 
Trade payables  9,20,32,708  10,14,40,503 
Other financial liabilities  8,53,824  9,32,500 
Less: Other Bank Balances  -2,42,18,291  -2,62,22,666 
Net Debt  10,81,12,422  9,82,35,081 

Convertible preference shares
Equity share capital  4,56,44,350  4,56,44,350 
Other Equity  10,33,40,138  10,15,14,798 
Total Capital  14,89,84,488  14,71,59,148 

Capital and net debt  25,70,96,910  24,53,94,229 

Gearing ratio(%)  42.05  40.03 

No financial covenants for capital structure have been stipulated in the contracts for borrowings
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